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U WIN AT IFIN

NOTICE

- NOTICE is hereby given that the 22™ Annual General Meeting of the shareholders

of the Company will be held at 17*" Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi
— 110019 on Tuesday, October 24, 2017 at 02.00 P.M to transact the following

business:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, together with Board of
Directors’ Report and the Auditors Report thereon; ﬁ

2. To appoint a director in place of Smt. S. Usha who retires by rotation and being eligible,

offers herself for reappointment.

3. To appoint Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(5) and 142 and all other
applicable provisions if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) M/s. Raman Associate, Chartered Accountants, having firm registration
number 002910S, appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG), be and
is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditor(s) of the Company for the financial year 2017-

- 18."

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s. Raman Associate, Statutory Auditor(s) of the Company,
be paid a fee of Rs. 5,00,000/- (Five lakh Rupees only) in respect of the audit of the
Accounts of the corhpany for the year 2017-18, Rs. 60,000/- (Sixty thousand only) in respect
of the Limi_te_d review for every quarter, Rs. 75,000/- (Seventy five thousand only) for
consolidation purpose and Rs.25,000/- (Twenty five thousand only) towards tax audit of the
company, plus applicable taxes and such other certification fees not exceeding Rs. 5000 (Rs.
Five Thousand Only) per certificate as payable from time to time."

Corpt. Office : ‘Continental Chambers’, 3rd Floor, 142, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Nungambakkam,
Chennai - 600 034. Tel : +91 (044) 2830 6600, Fax : +91 (044) 2830 6650, Website : wwwi.ifinitd.in
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AS SPECIAL BUSINESS o

4. Re-appointment of Smt S. Usha as Managing Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) if any, the
following resolution as a “Special Resolution”

+

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and any other
appllcable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under
(including any statutory modifi ication(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), read with Schedule V to the Companiés Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of
the Company and subject to the approval of Central Government or other Government
authority/agency/board, if any, the consent of the shareholders of the Company be and
is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Smt S. Usha (DIN: 03567757, residing at New
No.6, Old No.14, Parthasarathy Nagar, 10th Street, Adambakkam, Chennai, 600088), as
Managing Director of the Company for a further period of one year with effect from
April 21, 2017, on the existing terms & conditions of her deputation with liberty to the
Board of Directors (herein after referred to as “the Board” which term shall deemed to
include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board) to alter and vary
the terms and conditions of the said re-appointment and /or remuneration as it may
deem fit and as may be acceptable to Smt Usha, subject to such remuneration not
exceeding the limit prescribed under Schedule V to the Act or any statutory
modification(s) thereto or re-enactment thereof.”

“"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the total amount reimbursable to IFCI on account of
the salary/allowance/perquisites may be amended from time to time based on the
communication received by IFIN from IFCI, subject to all applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the shareholders of the Company be and
is hereby also accorded that where in any financial year the Company has no profits or
inadequate profits then remuneration as decided above be paid in accordance with the
limit prescribed under Schedule V of the Act subject to approval of the Central

Government, if any.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any
commlttee thereof be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as
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in its absolute discretion it may think necessary, expedient or desirable; to settle any
question or doubt that may arise in relation thereto in order to give effect to the
foregoitng resolution and to seek such approval/ consent from the Government
departments, as may be required in this regard.”

Appointment of Shri Sunit V. Joshi (DIN No. 02962154) as an Independent
Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) if any, the
following resolution as an “Ordinary Resolution”

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 and 152 read with
Schedule 1V and all other applicable provision's of the Companies Act, 2013 (JTHE ACT)
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, Shri
Sunit V. Joshi (DIN NO 02962154) who was appointed as an Additional Director
categorized as an Independent Director on 21.09.2016 pursuant to provisions of Section
161(1) of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company‘and who holds office
upto the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting in Ithe Year 2017, and in
respecf of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the
Act from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Director be
and is hereby appointed as such Independent Director of the Company, to hold office
for a term of three consecutive years from date of passing of this resolution, and whose
office shall not be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation.”

Appointment of Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo (DIN No. 02708503) as an
Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifi catlon(s) if any, the

followmg resolution as an “Ordinary Resolution”

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 andv152 read with
Schedule 1V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (THE ACT)
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, Mr.
Rajlb Sekhar Sahoo (DIN NO 02708503) who was appointed as an Additional Director
categorlzed as an Independent Dlrector on 24.07.2017 pursuant to provisions of Sectlon




161(1) of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company and who holds office
upto the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting in the Year 2017, and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the

Act from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Director be
and is hereby appointed as such Independent Director of the Company, to hold office
for a term of three consecutive years from date of passing of this resolution, and whose
office shall not be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation.”

P

7. Appointment of Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi (DIN No. 00028647) as an
Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) if any, the
following resolution as an “Ordinary Resolution”

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 and 152 read with
Schedule 1V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (THE ACT)
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, Smt.
Aparna Chaturvedi (DIN NO 00028647) who was appointed as an Additional Director
categorized as an Independent Director on 24.07.2017 pursuant té provisions of Section
161(1):of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company and who holds office
upto the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting in the Year 2017, and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the
Act from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Director be
and is hereby appointed as such Independent Director of the Company, to hold'ofﬁce
for a term of three consecutive years from date of passing of this resolution, and whose

office shall not be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation.”

By Order of the Board
For IFCI Financial Services Limited

A@n

Date : 26.09.2017 , Company Secretary
A%Y EARPEN

CG: Ao MN Y 5 C;‘:{\{?TM?QY

Place: Chennai
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- 1. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Special
business under Item No. 4, 5, 6 and 7 set out above is annexed hereto.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of the company. Proxy forms

should be submitted to the Company 48 Hours before the commencement of the

Meeting.

¥

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the
meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of board resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

“ 4. Members should bring the attendance slip duly filled in for attending the meeting.

5. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the explanatory statement
shall be open for inspection at the registered office of the Company during Business
Hours except on Holidays, up to and including the date of the Annual General Meetmg of
the Company.

6. Details of Directors seeking appointment or re-appointment at the Annual Géneral
Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, October 24, 2017 are provided in
Annexure - A of this notice.




Explanatory Statement

Statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013:

¢

Item No.4:

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and the Board of
Directors have, at their meeting held on April 18, 2016, re-appointed Smt. S. Usha as
Managing Director of the Company for a period of one year with effect from April 21, 2016.
The same was approved by the members of the Company by way of Special Resolution at
the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 07.09.2016.

Consequentially, the tenure of Smt. S. Usha as Managing Director came to an end on April
20, 2017. Therefore, the Nomination and Remunération Committee 9f the Board and the
Board of Directors have, at their meeting held on April 11, 2017, re-appointed Smt. S. Usha
as Managin§ Director of the Company for a further period of one year effective from April
21, 2016 until April 30, 2018 on the existing terms & conditions of her deputation.

In case, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, then the remuneration
shall be paid to her with the prior approval of the Central Government‘or in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V of the Act.

The terms and conditions of the re-appointment, including remuneration, etc., may be
amended from time to time based on the communication received by the Company from

IFCI Limited, subject to all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board recommends resolution under Item No.4 to be passed as a Special resolution.
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution except and to the extent
they are member of the Company, except Smt. S. Usha.




&

Item No. 5: To appoint Sri. Sunit V Joshi (DIN No 02962154) as an Independent
Director

Pursuant to the provisions of section 149 of the Act, read with Rule 4 of Companies
(Appointment of Directors) Rules, 2014 every public company having a paid up share capital
of Rs. 10 crore or above is required to have at least two directors as iﬁdependent directors,
who are not liable to retire by rotation.

Shri Sunit V Joshi was appointed as an Additional Director at the circular resolution passed
by the Board of Directors on 21.09.2016 categorized as an Independent Director. Shri Sunit
Vasant Joshi is a Qualified Chartered Accountant and a Post Graduate in Commerce. He also
holds a Diploma in Business Finance from ICFAI.. He retired as Chief General Manager of
State Bank of India on December, 2015 (Superannuation) and is having more than 37Vyears
of experience in Banking service. He was a senior management executive and industry
veteran with a wealth of experience across retail, corporate and investment banking. He
supervised over 2,000 officers and staff and managed a portfolio of over Rs. 1,00,000 crore.
He has got thorough knowledge of the Indian banking industry, including regulatory
aspects, as also extensive international exposure, especially to ﬁnanc}al markets in the UK
and Middle East.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 150(2) his appointment as Independent Director
should be approved by the Company at the General Meeting. In the opinion of the Board of
Directors, Sri Sunit V Joshi fulfills the conditions prescribed for* béing appointed as
Independent Director pursuant to Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and he is independent of the
management. Directors are of the opinion that Mr. Sunit V Joshi is a person of integrity and
possesses relevant expertise and experience. The Company has also received a declaration
from Shri Sunit V Joshi that he meets with the criteria of Independence as prescribed under
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 besides his consent to act as a Director. He has
also given 'a statement showing that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a
Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Accordingly the Company has received notice from Shri Sunit V Joshi proposing himself for
appointment as Independent Director with the requisite deposit of Rs. 1 lac. The Board
recommends this resolution for appointment of Sri Sunit V Joshi as an Independent Director
of the Company for a term of 3 consecutive years from date of passing of this resolution.
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Upon his appointment at this meeting, Sri. Sunit V Joshi shall not pe liable to retire by
rotation.

The copy of the draft letter of appointment of Sri. Sunit V Joshi as an Independent Director
would be available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal
business hours or working days upto the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Except Sri. Sunit V Joshi, no Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their

relatives are concerned, or interested, financial or otherwise, in this item of business.

Item No. 6: To appoint Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo (DIN No. 02708503) as an
Independent Director

i

Pursuant to the provisions of section 149 of the Act, read with Rule 4 of Companies
(Appointment of Directors) Rules, 2014 every public company having a paid up share capital
of Rs. 10 crore or above is required to have at least two directdrs as independent directors,
who are not liable to retire by rotation.

Shri M.P.Rege, Shri V.Ramanan and Shri.Lalit Kumar Patangia were appointéd ‘as
Independent Directors of the company on July 25, 2014. Since the tenure of these
Independent Directors came to an end on July 24, 2017, it was proposed to appoint Shri
Rajib Sekhar Sahoo as an Independent Director of IFIN in order to comply with provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. :

Accordingly, Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo was appointed as an Additional Director at the circular
resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 24.07.2017 categorized as an Independent
Director. Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo is a qualified Chartered Accountant and one of the
Principal Partner of M/s. SRB & Associates, Chartered Accountants.ﬁ I-!e has served as a
Director on the Board of Andhra Bank from July 2008 to July 2011, Bank of Baroda from
December 2011 to December 2014 and NTPC Limited from August 2011 to August 2014. He
has been a visiting faculty to reputed institutions like Xavier Institute of Management and

various Conferences and Seminars at National Level.




Few of his prestigious Achievers Award is given below:
e Times Group (Times of India) — 2015 & 2016
» Corporate Odisha — 2012
« Sadhab-Saman-2011,
e Kubera Shree — 2011
e Snehi Pratibha Saman - 2011

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 150(2) his appointment as independent Director
should be approved by the Company at the General Meeting. In the opinion of the Board of
Directors, Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo fulfills the conditions prescribed for being appointed as
Independent Director pursuant to Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and he is independent of the
management. Directors are of the opinion that Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo is a person of
integrity and possesses relevant expertise and experience.The company has also received a
declaration from Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo that he meets with the criteria of Independencé as
prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 besides his consent to act as a
Director. He has also given a statement showing that he is not disqualified from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies A;t, 2013.

AccordinegL the Company has received notice from Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo proposing
himself for appointment as Independent Director with the requisite deposit of Rs. 1 lac. The
Board recommeﬁds this resolution for appointment of Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo as an
Independent Director of the Company for a term of 3 consecutive years from date of
passing of this resolution. Upon his appointment at this meeting, Shfi Rajib Sekhar Sahoo
shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

The copy of the draft letter of appointment of Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo as an Independent
Director would be available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during

normal business hours or working days upto the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Except Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo, no Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or

their relatives are concerned, or interested, financial or otherwise, in this item of business.

™
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Item No. 7: To appoint Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi (DIN NO. 00028647) as an
Independent Director '

- Pursuant to the provisions of section 149 of the Act, read with E{ule 4 of Companies
(Appointment of Directors) Rules, 2014 every public company having a paid up share capital
of Rs. 10 crore or above is required to have at least two directors as independent directors,
who are not liable to retire by rotation.

Shri M.P.Rege, Shri V.Ramanan and Shri.Lalit Kumar Patangiawere appointed as

Independent Directors of the company on July 25, 2014. Since thé tenure of these

Independent Directors came to an end on July 24, 2017, it was proposed to appoint Smt.

Aparna Chaturvedi as an Independent Director of IFIN in order to-comply with provisions of

the Companies Act, 2013. '

Accordingly, Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi was appointed as an Additional l;irector at the circular
resolution ;5assed by the Board of Directors on 24.07.2017 categorized as an Independent

Director.

Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi is an MBA in Finance from University of Lucknow and Senior
Executive Programme in British Lord Chevening Scholarship. Having an industry experience
of around 27 vyears, before getting superannuated she was working in UTI Asset
Management Company. She has also worked in ASREC India Limited as a Whole-time
Director and President. She has been holding Directorship in ASREC India Limited, Jain
Irrigation Ltd., Nisha Synthetics Ltd., Flexo Film Wraps India Ltd., Syntheticé & Chemicals
Ltd., Mysore Petro Chemicals Ltd., and Guishan Sugars and Chemicals Ltd.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 150(2) her appointment as Independent Director
should be approved by the Company at the General Meeting. In the opinion of the Board of
Directors, Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi fulfills the conditions prescribed for being appointed as
Independent Director pursuant to Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and she is independent of the
management. Directors are of the opinion that Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi is a person of
integrity and possesses relevant expertise and experience. The company has also received a
declaration from Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi that she meets with the criteria of Independence
as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 besides her consent to act

o~
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asa Directc;r. She has also given a statement showing that she is not disqualified from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

.Accordingly the Company has received notice from Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi proposing

himself for appointment as Independent Director with the requisite deposit of Rs. 1 lac. The
Board recommends this resolution for appointment of Smt. Aparna‘ Chaturvedi as an
Independent Director of the Company for a term of 3 consecutive years from déte‘ of
passing of this resolution. Upon his appointment at this meeting, Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi
shall not be liable to retire by rotation. '

The copy of the draft letter of appointment of Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi as an Independent
Director would be available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during
normal business hours or working days upto the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Except Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi, no Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives are concerned, or interested, financial or otherwise, in this item of business.

By Order of the Board
For IFCI Financial Services Limited

Place: Chennai : An@

Date : 26.09.2017 T Company Secretary
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Annexure — A

Details of the Directors seeking' Appointment/ Re-Appointment in the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting

Name of the Smt. S. Usha Shri. Sunit V. | Shri Rajib Sekhar Smt. Aparna
Director - Joshi Sahoo Chaturvedi
Date of Birth April 12, 1958 December 09, | July 01, 1962 August 25, 1958
' 1955 '

Date of | August 30, 2013 September 21, | July 24, 2017 July 24, 2017
Appointment 2016 ,
Expeitise in | Banking and | Banking services | Banking services Financial Services
Specific Financial Services '

functional area

Qualification B.Sc., M.B.A., CAIIB | M.Com, C.A CA MBA in Finance
Experience 30 plus years of {37 vyears of 27 years
experience in | experience in
Financial Services Banking service
Directoréhips in] 1. IFCI  Financial | Nil 1. Odisha State | Nil
other ‘, Services Limited Civil  Supplies
Companies 2, IFIN Corporation 4
: Commodities Limited
Limited 2. IFCI Factors
3. IFIN Credit Limited
Limited 3. Kalihga Hospital
Limited _
Number of | 5 2 Nil Ni;
Board Meetinés
attended during
the Year .
Chairman/ Member of Audit | Member of | Nil Member of Audit
Membership of | Committee Audit Committee ‘
the 1. IFIN Securities | Committee 1. IFCI Financial

Committee

Finance Limited

1. IFCI Financial

Services Limited

in
Gt
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across all

Companies

Member of

Nomination and

Remuneration

Committee

1. IFCI
Services Limited

2. IFIN

Finance Limited

Financial

Securities

Chairman of |

Share Transfer

Committee

1. IFCI
Services Limited

2. IFIN

Finance Limited

Financial

Securities

Services Limited
Member of
Nomination
and
Remuneration
Committee

1. IFCI Financial
Services Limited

Member

of

Nomination and

Remuneration
Committee

1. IFCI Financial

Services Limited

3. IFIN
Commodities a
| Limited |
4. IFIN Credit
Limited
Shareholding in | Nil Nil Nil Nil
the Company
Relationship Nil Nil Nil Nil
with other
Directors




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: U74899DL1995G01064034
Registered Office: IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110 019

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(7o be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

Name of the attending Member (in Block Letters)

Member’s Folio/Account Number
Number of Shares held

I hereby record my presence at the 22™ Annual General Méeting of the Company held on
Tuesday, October 24, 2017 at 02.00 p.m at 17th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New
Delhi - 110 019. |

Member’'s/Proxy’s Signature




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: U74899DL1995G0I1064034

Registered Office: IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

FORM NO MGT-11
PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule 1 9(3) of the Companies
‘} (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014) -

CIN : U74899DL1995G0I1064034

Name of the Company : IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Registered Office : Registered Office: IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place,

New Delhi - 110 019

Email: cs@‘iﬁnltd.in
Telephone: 044 2830 6634

Name of the
Member(s) :

Registered Address :

E mail Id :

Folio No / Client ID:

DPID:

b

I/ We, being the member(s) of shares of the above named company, hereby

appoint:
(1) Name:
- Address:
Email ID:-
Signature: , or failing him/her

(2) Name:
Address:




Email ID:
Signature: , or failing him/her

(3) Name:
Address:
Email ID:

Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 22nd
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, October 24, 2017 at 02.00
p.-m at 17th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110 019 and at any
adjournmer_]t thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

RESOLUTIONS
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. Receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 together with Board
of Directors’ Report and the Auditors Report thereon.
2. Appoint a director in place of Smt S. Usha, who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers herself for re-appointment.
3. Appoint Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Re-appointment of Smt S. Usha as Managing Director of the Company.

Appoint Sri. Sunit V Joshi (DIN No 02962154) as an Independent Director
Appoint Shri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo (DIN No. 02708503) as an Independent Director
Appoint Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi (DIN No. 00028647) as an Independent Director

N o v A

Signed this day of 2017
Affix

Signature of the Shareholder
Revenue

Stamp
Signature of Proxy holder(s)




Notes:

1. The form of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered office of the company not less than 48 Hours before the commencement
of the Meeting. '

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in
person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint
holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
Register of Members.

4. The form of Proxy confers authority to demand or join in demanding a poll.

5. The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member from
attending in person and voting at the meeting.

In case a member wishes his/her votes to be used differently, he/she should indicate the
number of shares under the columns “For” or “Against” as appropriate.




U WIN AT IFIN

IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
(A Subsidiary of IFCI Ltd.).

BOARDS' REPORT

To
The Members of.

IFCI Financial Services Limited

The Board of Directors of your Company hereby presents the Twenty Second Annual

Report of IFCI Financial Services Limited together with the Audited Financial Statement

for the financial year ended on March 31, 2017.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Amount in Rs.lakh

Operating Results:

Incume from Operations

1433.49

1293.48

2272.61

2250.05

Other Income

Add: Reversal of provisions for Diminution in
the value of securities held as stock-in-trade

396,27

55.03

527.86
S

(64.76)

264.87

54.76

463.62

(64.91)

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts and
Advances/bad debts written off

(61.44)

38.33

732.49

Less: Exceptional item

Less: Current year tax MAT

| Less: MAT Credit entitlement

: Deferred Tax Charges (Net

Corpt. Office : ‘Continental Chambers’, 3rd Floor, 142, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Nungambakkam,
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2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

- - The Operating Income of IFIN increased from Rs. 1293.48 lakh for the year 2015-16 to

Rs.1433.49 lakh for the year 2016-17, mainly due to positive sentiments in Capital
Markets and higher partICIpatxon by retail investors. ‘ ~

| v However, Other Income decreased from Rs.527.86 lakh during 2015-16 to Rs.396.27
lakh in FY 2016-17, since the previous year’s figure included profit on sale of windmill
asset amounting to Rs.186.82 lakh. Among the other components of Other Income,
Miscellaneous Income, which mainly consists of reimbursement of expenses from ISFL,

went up due to increased recovery at Rs.31.25 lakh per quarter.

In 2015-16, provision of Rs.103.09 lakh was made in the books, consisting of
diminution in the value of shares by Rs.64.76 lakh and provision for bad and doubtful
debts of Rs.38.33 lakh. However, during the year 2016-17, due to enhancement in the
value of shares by Rs.55.03 lakh and NPA recovery of Rs.61.44 lakh from 2 accounts
viz. Prime Research and Advi'sory Ltd. and Shri Narendra M. Thacker, there has beén a
reversal of provision aggregating Rs.116.47 lakh, as a result of which net loss for the
year 2016-17 was much lower at Rs.0.20 lakh, as against net loss of Rs.73.12 lakh
incurred during the last financial year ended 31.03.2016.

There was an overall increase in expenses from Rs.1792.60 lakh for FY 2015-16 to
Rs.1946.43 lakh for FY 2016-17. The employee cost increased from Rs.842.30 lakh to
Rs.954.96 lakh, mainly on account of change in Leave Encashment Policy and

increments given to employees.

Depreciation has come down from Rs.20.42 lakh for FY 2015-16,to Rs.14.12 lakh for
FY 2016-17. '

Out of 32 branches, 19 branches made a profit of Rs.174.22 lakh and the remaining 13
branches made losses amounting to Rs.42.98 lakh during FY 2016-17, thereby
resulting in overall net profit from broking business of branches at Rs.131.24 lakh
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during the year. The institutional team of Mumbai and Delhi has earned a net prbfit of
Rs. 54.55 Lakh and Rs. 39.38 each respectively.

3. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCES

3.1 STOCK BROKING

The Company’s stock broking operations have witnessed tremendous growth
across geography. With wider reach expected in the Financial Year 2017-18, |
your Company is on the right path to add to its clientele base significantly. The
net brokerage income of the company increased from Rs.1194 lakh in the
previous year to Rs.1244 lakh in the current year.

3.2 INSURANCE COMMISSION

Insurance Commission earned during the year is Rs..0.97 Lakh for the year
2016- 17 (prewous year Rs. 0.72 lakh). '

3.3 BROKERAGE FROM SELLING OF MUTUAL FUNDS

During the year, your company has earned an income of Rs. 55.50 lakh from
selling of mutual fund units as compared to Rs. 21.33 lakh in the previous
year.

3.4 DISTRIBUTION OF IPO’S & BONDS

During the year, your company has earned an income of Rs. 49.39 lakh from
distribution of IPO’s & Bonds as compared to Rs. 30.20 lakh in the previous
year.

3.5 DEPOSITORY SEGMENT

The Company operated as the Depository Participants of both NSDL and CDSL
dUring the year for the benefit of its retail and institutional client base. Total
Income received during the year 2016-17 was Rs. 57.33 lakh (previous year
Rs. 42.59 lakh)
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3.6 NON FUND BASED ACTIVITY- MERCHANT BANKING, AND INVESTMENT
BANKING

During the year the Company has earned not earned any fees in this category
(Previous year Rs. 4.00 lakh).

. BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

PR

Presently India is seen as the world’s most attractive investment destination. With
the opening up of foreign direct investment (FDI) in several sectors, India is today
an eye-catching destination for overseas investors. The relaxation of norms by the
government has created a vast opportunity for foreign players, who are competing
for a greater role in the Indian market. Sectors projected to do well in the coming

years include automotive, technology, life sciences and consumer products.

India has also become a hotbed for research and development (R&D) and the
country is now a preferred destination for automotive R&D. It has been noted that
there was strong potential for growth in areas such as engineering analytics and
that 5|gn|f|cant talent could be found in ‘Deccan Triangle’ region, wh|ch
encompasses Pune, Bangalore and Hyderabad.

The US$ 1.2 trillion investment planned for the infrastructure sector in the 12th
Five-Year Plan will go a long way in improving export performance of Indian
companies and the Indian growth story, according to Union Minister for Commerce
and Industry, Government of India.

Investors in India continue to be optimistic about the country’s stock market
performance for 2017 .Investors believe that the best equity opportunities in 2017
and over the next 10 years will be in India, with rest of Asia in second place.

F -

5. OUTLOOK

IFIN shall adopt the-following strategy in order to maintain its growth and profitability
for FY 2017-18.
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Revamping of existing branches, closing of non-performing branches

Using the brand of its parent IFCI Limited, and sales and research team is
jointly and aggressively marketing to get more empanelment and market
share. _

Motivation of the employees by implementing incentive scheme:

Lot of emphasis will be given for new client development and cross selling of
third party products. :

In Investment banking the plan is to concentrate on syndication of funds
required by SME.

More additions of Sub broker / Authorised Persons

6. SUBSIDIARIES

6.1

IFIN SECURTIES FINANCE LIMITED

IFIN Securities Finance Limited, a NBFC (formerly known as Narayan Srirém
Investments Private Limited) is a wholly owned subsidiary of IFCI Financial
Services Limited. It is engaged in the business of margin funding, providing

loan against shares & property, promoter funding etc.

6.2

6.3

IFIN COMMODITIES LIMITED

IFIN Commodities Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of IFCI Financial
Services Limited, was incorporated to engage in the business of Commodity
broking. |

IFIN Commodities Ltd, a registered‘ member of the Multi Commodity
Exchange of India Ltd (MCX), National Commodity and Derivatives Exchange
Ltd (NCDEX) and National Spot Exchange Limited (NSEL), is primarily
engaged in the business of providing Commodity market related transaction
services.

IFIN CREDIT LIMITED

IFIN Credit Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of IFCI Financial Services
Ltd. Currently it is not engaged in any operation. IFIN Credit Limited is in the
process of getting merged with IFIN Commodities Limited.
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o _- 7. SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 129
(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of

subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures pursuant to first proviso to sub-
section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
Form AOC-1is given in Annexure-I.

8. DIVIDEND

¥

No dividend is being recommended by the Directors for the year ended March 31,
2017.

9. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

#

- The Board of Directors have no proposal to carry on any amount to any reserves
for the’year ended March 31, 2017.

10. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(a) As at March 31, 2017, the Board consisted of 7 (Seven) Directors. The Company
has a Non-Executive Chairman and one Managing Director, 4 Independent
Directors and 1 IFCI Nominee. The Management of the Company is headed by
the Managing Director, who operates under the supervision and control of the
Board.

(b) The changes in Directors during the financial year 2016-17 are as follows:

e Shri. M.V. Muthu, Independent Director resigned from the Board on 29.08.2016
consequent upon his tenure as an Independent Director as per the terms of his
appointment ended on that date. Your Directors place on record their sincere
appreciation for the significant contributions made by Shri. M.V. Muthu, as an
Independent Director of the Company.
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e The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Sunit V Joshi as an Additional Director of -

the Company in the category of Independent Director with effect from 21%
September, 2016. Mr. Sunit V Joshi has given declaration that he meets the
criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act; 2013. |
 Shri. Malay Mukherjee, Nominee Director of IFCI designated as Chairman (Non
— Executive) of IFIN resigned from the Board on 12" December, 2016
consequent upon completion of his tenure as CEO & MD of IFCI Ltd on 11%
December, 2016. Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation for
the significant contributions made by Shri. Malay Mukherjee, as Chairman (Non
~ — Executive) of the Company. ’

e Shri. Achal Kumar Gupta, Nominee Director of IFCI resigned from the Board on
12" December, 2016 consequent upon completion of his tenure as DMD of IFCI
Ltd on 11" December, 2016. You'r Directors place on ‘record their sincere
appreciation for the significant contributions made by Shri. Achal Kumar Gupta,
as Director of the Company. |

e The Board had extended the tenure of Smt. S. Usha, Managing Director for a
further period of one year, effective from April 21,2017 until April 30,2018, on
the existing terms and conditions of her deputation.

. o Shri'Aby Eapen, appointed in the position of Company Secretary with effect

| from 06" September, 2016.

(c) Five Boafd Meetings were held during the year. The dates on which the Board

meetings were held are as follows: .
111" Board Meeting April 18, 2016
112" Board Meeting April 27, 2016
113" Board Meeting July 29, 2016
114" Board Meeting Oct 25, 2016
115" Board Meeting Jan 30, 2017




(d) The composition of the Board, number of meetings held, attendance of the

Directors at the Board Meeting and the number of the Directorship in other

companies in respect of each Director is as given herein below:-

Sl. Name of Director Attendance | No. of other Directorships
No. Particulars 31° March, 2017
No. of Meetings Other Director-ships
dufing (Including Private Limited
2016-17 Companies )
Held" | Attended |
1. | Shri Biswajit Banerjee @ 1 1
2. | Shri Malay Mukherjee* 4 2 5
3. | Shri Achal Kumar Gupta* 4 4 8
4. | Shri Manoj P Rege 5 5 1
5. | Shri M. V. Muthu* 3 3 2
6. | Shri V. Ramanan 5 5 10
7. | Shri Lalit Kumar Patangia 5 5 -
8. | Shri Sunit Vasant Joshi® 2 2 -
9. | Shri Rajesh Kumar Gupta 5 4 -
10. | Smt. S Usha 5 5 3

* No. of Board Meetings held during the tenure of directors in the financial year 2016-

2017.

®please refer clause 10(b) of this report regarding changes in Directors during the

financial year 2016-17.

11. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

11.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE:

(A) COMPOSITION




Y

The Audit Committee of the Company presently consists-of two Independent

. Directors and one Non — Executive Director. The Chairman of the Committee is

an independent director. The composition of the Audit committee and

- attendance of directors at the meetings for the FY 2016-17 is shown below:-

SI. | Name of Director Designation No. of Meetings
No. during the tenure
of respective
directors in FY
2016-2017
Held Attended
11 Shri  Lalit *~ Kumar | Chairman 4 4
Patangia (Independent, Non-executive)
2| Shri V. Ramanan Member "2 2
; (Independent, Non-executive)
3| Shri Sunit V. Joshi Member , 1 1
(Independent, Non-executive)
4| Shri M. V. Muthu* Member 2 2
(Independent, Non-executive)
5/ Shri  Achal Kumar | Member 3 3
Gupta* (Non-executive) ,

* No. of Board Meetings held during the tenure of directors in the financial year 2016-

2017.

The Managing Director/Whole-time Director, Statutory Auditors and Internal

Auditors are invited to participate in the meetings of the Audit Committee

wherever necessary, as decided by the committee. The Company Secretary acts

as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

The Non-Executive Directors except nominees of IFCI Ltd are paid sitting fees for

every meeting of the Board and its Committees attended by them.

(B) THE NUMBER OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD AND DATES:

During the financial year 2016-17, the. Audit Committee of Directors of the
Company met 4 times. The dates of the meetings were 27.04.2016, 28.07.2016,
25,10.2016 & 30.01.2017. |
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(C) TERMS OF REFERENCE:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee shall be* in accordance with
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and shall include overseeing the vigil
mechanism / Whistle Blower policy of the Company.

11.2 NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMI1TEE: '
(A) COMPOSITION
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company presently consists
~ of two Independent Directors and the Managing Director. The composition of the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance of directors at the
meetings for the FY 2016-17 is shown below:-

S. Name of Director Category No. of Meetings
No. | during the tenure of
| respective directors
" in FY 2016-2017
Held Attended

1. Shri M. P. Rege Chairman A 2 2
(Independent, Non-executive)
2. Shri M. V. Muthu Member -2 2
(Independent, Non-exchtive) ,
3. |Shri Achal Kumar | Member - 2 2
Gupta (Non-executive)

(B) THE NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD AND DATES




R During the financial year 2016-17, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of
Directors of the Company met two times. The date of the meeting are
18.04.2016 and 28.07.2016.

(C) TERMS OF REFERENCE:

- The terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is in -

accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and includes:

e To approve the remuneration payable to directors and key managerial
personnel ("KMP” as defined by the Act). | '
e Recommend to the board the “formulation of the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a dire_ctor".
e Recommend to the board the appointment of directors.
e Recommend to the board appointment of KMP and persons one level
- | below KMP of the Company. |
| e Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance and support the
board and independent directors in evaluation of the performance of the
board, its committees and individual directors. '
o Recommend to the board the remuneration policy as required under the
Companies Act, 2013. | '
e Performing such other duties and responsibilities as may required under

the Companies Act, 2013 and Board of directors from time to time.
11.3 OTHER COMMITTEES:

The Company also has committees such as Management Committee, Share

Allotment Committee, Share Transfer Committee, and Investment Committee, etc.,

E
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12. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN AS PROVIDED UNDER SUB-SECTION
(3) OF SECTION 92

The Extract of the annual return as provided under sub-section (3) of section 92 in

Form MGT-9 is given in Annexure-II.
13. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to requirement of Section 134 (3) (c) read with Section 134 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013,with respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is

hereby confirmed that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accouhts, the applicable accounting standards

had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) thé directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end
of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
= adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and

other irregularities;

4

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating

effectively.
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15.

16.

14. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

UNDER SUB-SECTION(6) OF SECTION 149

The Independent Directors of the company have declared ‘that they meet the
criteria- of independence in terms of sub-section (6) of section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and there is no change in their status of independence.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER
DETAILS: -

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and
other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178 is given in Annexure-
III. '

AUDITORS

M/s. Ponraj & Co, Chartered Accountants, Chennai are the retiring auditors of the

Company and they hold office till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting.

Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide letter dated 13.07.2017 have
appointed M/s. Raman Associate, Chartered Accountants, Chennai as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2017-18. The necessary resolution
for fixing the remuneration of auditors will be placed before the shareholders for

their approval.

. REPORTS OF COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA:

Jo




18.

- 19.

20.

The explanations/comments on the report of Comptroller & Auditor General of India
on the.accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2017 under Compahies Act, 2013
are attached as Annexure-1V to this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186

Loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act 2013

form part of the notes to the financial statement.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES |

All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties were in the ordinary

course of business and at Arm'’s Length pricing basis.

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the FY
2016-17 which were in conflict with the interest of the Company.

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangement with related parties are given in notes
to the financial statement. The details as required under Sectign 134 (3) (h) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules thereunder in Fdrm AOC-2 are given in.
Anne)éure V to this report.

DEPOSITS
During the financial year 2016-17, the Company has not acéepted any deposits

within the meaning of provisions of Chapter V — Acceptance of Deposits by
Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules thereunder.
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21. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

o 2o ]
L L

23.

bl

There are no significant material changes and commitments for the Financial
Year 2016-17.

. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO & EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Company has taken measures to conserve energy by having energy efficient
air conditioners, blade servers, CFL lamps, LCD monitors etc. at its various
locations. As regards absorption of technology, your Company has installed
computer systems, software pa.ckages and other office equipments to increase its
organisational efficiency, maximise productivity and to gain competitive
advantage.

Your Company has neither incurred any expenditure nor egrned any income in
foreign exchange. ‘

Further, your Company has not incurred any expenditure on Research and
Development.

THE RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY. .

The Cdmpany has formulated and put in place Risk Management and Surveillance
policy in order to mitigate risk related to the business of the Company. Surveillance
and risk monitoring of the client tradingvlimit are very crucial part of trading
system. Effective surveillance can achieve investor protection, market integrity and
safe guard of securities market and trading member. The factors considered for
designing exposure policy include Client Margin, Approved Collateral Stocks,
Volatility of the market, Prevailing market practice, etc. The Risk Management team
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24,

- 25,

of the Company takes effective measures in order to protect the interest of the

Company and investors as per the policy of the Company.
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has put in place adequate Internal Financial Control commensurate
with the size of the Company and nature of its business. The Company has
appointed M/s. Madhu Balan & Associates as Internal Auditors to conduct the
internayl audit functions and the activities of the Company for the FY 2017-18.

The findings and recommendations of the Internal Auditors are reviewed by the

Audit Committee of the Board on a periodical basis and necessary corrective actions

are being undertaken.

The Cdmpany has adopted Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism for its director(s)
and employee(s) to report to the management their concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct
or ethics policy.

The Cémpahy has installed necessary software(s) for maintaining accuracy and
completeness of accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial

information.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to Section 177(9) & Section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the
Company has established a vigil mechanism which is overseen through the Audit
Committee. Adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and directors
who express their concerns, forms part of the mechanism.
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R Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/ employee has been denied access

to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
26. ANTI SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company has in place Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the
requirements of Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. ‘

An intqrnal Complaints Committee has been set up for redressal of complaints and
that alIv employeés (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under

this policy.

During the year under review, the company has not received any compliant
pursuant to the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace |
(Prevehtion,ﬁ Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013. v

27. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisiohs of the Companies Act, 2013, a geparate meeting of
Indepe'ndent Directors was held without the attendance of non-independent
directors and members of management to review the performance of non-
independent directors, the Board as a whole and to review the Chairperson of the
! company, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive

directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors has reviewed
the performance of Board and its committees taking into ~consideration the

contributions made by the Directors/members of the Committee.




. 28.

29l

30.

&

Subsequently, the Board has made formal annual evaluation of its own |
performance, and that of its committees and individual directors taking into
consideration the evaluation criteria as set in the Nomination and Remuneration
Policy of the Company.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or

Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of the Company.
PERSONNEL

The company has no employee in respect of whom the information required under
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies
(Appoihtment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as

amended, is required to be given.

The Board further places on record its appreciation of the services of all the

employees of the Company.
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the Company. .
' By Order of the Board

IFCI Financial;-Ser\gices Limited
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Form AOC-1

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Annexure I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of

subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A": Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl. Particulars Details Details Details
No

1. Name of the IFIN Securities [FIN Commodities [[FIN Credit Limited
subsidiary Finance Limited Limited ‘

2. Reporting Reporting Period  Reporting Period Reporting Period
period for the same as holding  same as holding same as holding
subsidiary company’s company’s company’s
concerned, if
different from
the holding
company’s
reporting period

3. Reporting Nil Nil Nil
currency and
Exchange rate
as on the last
date of the
relevant
Financial year
in the case of
foreign
subsidiaries

4. Share capital 30,01,00,000 5,00,00,000 2,50,00,000

5. Reserves & 3,46,12,799 31,49,588 (52,76,562)
surplus -

6. Total assets 41,97,30,703 11,25,95,689 2,08,12,688

7. Total Liabilities 41,97,30,703 11,25,95,689 2,08,12,688

8. Investments 1,72,699 Nil Nil

9. Turnover 7,15,69,297 1,51,20,829 12,56,253

10. Profit before 3,21,89,811 (14,26,829) (12,27,395)
taxation

11. Provision for 65,25,000 (5,85,078) -
taxation

12. Profit after 2,56,64,811 (8,41,751) (12,27,395)

taxation




113. Proposed Nil - Nil Nil
Dividend - '

14. % of 100% 100% 100%
shareholding ‘

o _ Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

Part “"B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures ' Nil
Latest audited Balance Sheet Date Not Applicable
Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the Not Applicable

year end

No. Not Applicable
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture Not Applicable
Extend of Holding% ‘Not Applicable
| Description of how there is significant influence Not Applicable
Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated Not Applicable
Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Not Applicable

Balance Sheet .
Profit/Loss for the year Not Applicable
Considered in Consolidation Not Applicable
Not Considered in Consolidation Not Applicable




- 1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil

" 2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the = - -

year: Nil

For IFCI Financial Services Limited

AV Pushparaj ' S Usha Sreekumaran V Nair
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director - Director
(DIN 03567757) (DIN 02207516)




f Annexure II

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2017

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.| CIN* (OLD - U74899DL1995PLC064034)
(New - U74899DL1995G01064034)
2.| Registration Date 04/01/1995

3.| Name of the Company | IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

4.| Category/Sub-category | Company Limited by shares/ Government Company
of the Company*
5.| Address of the IFCI Towers, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019 &
Registered office & Email: cs@ifinltd.in, Telephone: 044 2830 6650
contact details

6.| Whether listed No
company
7. Name, Address & Nil

contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer
Agent, if any.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

S. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the

No. | products / services Product/service | company
. 1 Security and commodity 6612 60.67%
‘ contracts brokerage

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company
shall be stated:-

Sl. | Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding/ % of shares Applicable
No. of the Company . Subsidiary/ | held Section
IAssociate
1 [FCI Ld (Old- Holding 94.78 Section 2 (87)
IFCI Towers, 61, NehrulL74899DL1993PLC053677) & Section 2
. Place, New Delhi - (New - (46)
! 110019 1.74899DL1993G0I1053677)

&
A f




100%

2 [IFIN Securities Finance |(Old - Subsidiary Section 2 (87)
Limited - U65991TN1989PLC017792) :
Continental Chambers, [(New-

142, 3" Floor, U65991TN1989G0I017792)
Mahatma Gandhi Road,

Nungambakkam,

Chennai — 600 034

3. [IFIN Commodities (Old - Subsidiary {100% Section 2 (87)
Limited U93000TN2009PLC070524) '

Continental Chambers, |(New -

142, 3 Floor, U93000TN2009G0O1070524)
Mahatma Gandhi Road,

Nungambakkam,

Chennai — 600 034

4, [IFIN Credit Limited (Old - Subsidiary [100% Section 2 (87)
Continental Chambers, [U67190TN1995PLC032057)

142, 3" Floor, (New - .
Mahatma Gandhi Road, [U67190TN1995G01032057)

Nungambakkam,

Chennai — 600 034

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) '
Category-wise Share Holding .

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As %

Shareholders year[As on 31-March-2016] on 31-March-2017] Chapge
- Demat | Physical Total % of Demat | Physical Total % of tg: r;;gr
| Total Total

Shares Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian - - - - - - - - - -

a) Individual/ HUF* 6 6 0.00 | _ 6 6 0.00 0

b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - .

c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

d) Bodies Corp. - 3,93,63,803 3,93,63,803 94.78 R 3,93,63,803 3,93,63,803 94.78 0

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - _ " -

f) Any other - - - - - N _ - N N

Total - 3,93,63,803 | 3,93,63,803 | 94.78 3,93,63,803 | 3,93,63,803 | 94.78

shareholding of

Promoter (A) i 0
L B. Public - - . - - n 5 : -

Shareholding**
1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - N
b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - N
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - N
¢€) Venture Capital - - - - - - - - N

Funds

f) Insurance




¥

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year[As on 31-March-2016]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As
on 31-March-2017]

Companies

Demat | Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the year

g) Flls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

1. Sub-total

| @y

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

- 2169900

2169900

5.22

2169900

2169900

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1 lakh

¢) Others (specify)

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas Corporate
Bodies

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies - D
R

Sub-total**
(B)(2):-

- 2169900

2169900

5.22

2169900

2169900

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total

- | 41533709

41533709

100

41533709

41533709

100

(A+B+C)

* beneficial interest are held by IFCI Limited
**Shares held by individuals other than promoter are shown in “B”, since they do not fall under
the category of “Promoter.” '




B) Shareholding of Promoter:

S Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the year | % change
N Name the year : in
shareholdin
No. of % of | %of No. of % of | %of g during
Shares total | Shares Shares total | Shares the year
Shares | Pledged / Shares | Pledged /
of the | encumbere of the | encumbere
compa | d to totai compa | d to total
ny shares ny shares

1 | IFCI Limited 3,93,63,803 | 94.78 3,93,63,803 94.78 -

2 | Shri Satpal Arora 1 0.00 | - 0 0.00 | - -
(Nominee of IFCI
Limited)

3 | ShriBiranchi N 1 0.00 | - 1 0.00 | - -
Nayak *

(Nominee of IFCI
Limited) -

4 | ShriV. 1 0.00 | - 1 0.00 | - -
Satyavenkata Rao
(Nominee of IFCI
Limited) '

5 | Shri Deepak i 0.00 | - 1 0.00 | - -
Mishra '
(Nominee of IFCI
Limited) )

6 | Shri A K Assija 1 0.00 | - 1|  0.00]- -
(Nominee of IFCI '

Limited)

7 | Shri Dharam Pal 1 0.00 | - 1 0.00 | - -
Rauhilla
(Nominee of IFCI

. Limited)
8 | Shri Vijay Pal 0 0.00 | - 1 0.00 | -
(Nominee of IFCI .
Limited)
Total - 3,93,63,809 | 94.78 | - 3,93,63,809 94.78 | - -

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):

SN | Particulars ' Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding

beginning of the year . | during the year
No. of % of total No. of - | % of total
shares shares of shares shares of the
the company
. company
! 1 | At the beginning of the year 3,93,63,809 94.78 | 3,93,63,809 94.78
2 | Date wise Increase / Decrease in | - - - -

Promoters -Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment /transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.):

3 | At the end of the year 3,93,63,809 94.78 | 3,93,63,809 ‘ 94.78
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D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative
Shareholders beginning Shareholding during the
‘ of the year year
No. of % of total | No. of % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of
the the
company company
1 At the beginning of the year
- Smt. Chandra Ramesh 17,57,619 4.23 | 17,57,619 - 4.23
- Shri D.V. Ramesh 4,12,281 0.99 | * 4,12,281 0.99
2 Date ,wise Increase / Decrease in - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):
3 At the end of the year
- Smt. Chandra Ramesh 17,57,619 4.23 | ,17,57,619 4.23
- Shri D.V. Ramesh 4,12,281 0.99 4,12,281 0.99
E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
SN | Shareholding of each Directors Shareholding at the Cumulative
and each Key Managerial beginning Shareholding during
Personnel of the year the year o
No. of % of No. of % of
shares total shares | total
shares of shares of
the the
company company
1 | At the beginning of the year - - - -
2 | Date wise Increase / Decrease in | - - - -
Promoters Shareholding during the
year ‘specifying the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
3 | At the end of the year - - - -

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount -

i) Interest due but not paid -

iii) Interest accrued but not due -




Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured Deposits Total i
Loans P Indebtedness

Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during | - - . - -
the financial year
* Addition - - - -
* Reduction - - - -
... .| Net Change - - - -
! Indebtedness at the end of the | - - - -
financial year
i) Principal Amount - - - -
i) Interest due but not paid - - - -
i) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii-+iii) - - - -

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
- A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Amount in Rs)

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ - Total
Manager Amount
S. Usha (MD)
. 1 Gross salary
. (a) Salary as per provisions contained in 2,229,582 2,229,582
| section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, ’

1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 489,369 489,369

Income-tax Act, 1961 ‘_

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 10,917 10,917

17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - -
Sweat Equity - ) -
4 Commission - -
- as % of profit

- others, specify...
5 Others, please specify - -
Total (A) 2,729,868 2,729,868
Ceiling as per the Act (as per Schedule V N.A

of the Companies Act, 2013)

w

B. Remuneration to other directors (Amount in Rs)

SN. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Amount:
ShriMV | ShriMP | ShriV Shri Lalit | Shri Sunit
Muthu® | Rege Ramanan Patangia | Vasant
- | Joshi
1 | Independent Directors .
Fee for attending board and 78,000 87,000 87,000 1,02,000 31,500 3,85,500
committee meetings ‘
Commission - - - - -




SN. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
‘ ‘ Amount
ShriMV | ShriMP | ShriV Shri Lalit | Shri Sunit
Muthu® | Rege Ramanan Patangia | Vasant
Joshi _
Others, please specify - - - - : -
Total (1) 78,000 87,000 87,000 | 1,02,000 31,500 3,85,500
2 | Other Non-Executive Directors .
- Fee for attending board - - - - -
' committee meetings

Commission - - - - : -

Others, please specify - - - - -

Total (2) - - - - -

Total (B)=(1+2) 78,000 87,000 87,000 1,02,000 31,500 3,5%5,500

Total Managerial . .

Remuneration* Nil

Overall Ceiling as per the Act ‘ - (@1% of
profits ’
calculated
under Section
198 of the
Companies Act,
2013)

# Shri. M.V. Muthu, Independent Director resigned from the Board on 29.08.2016 consequent upon
expiry of his tenure as an Independent Director.

*Excluding sitting fees under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013 A .

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

SN | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO cs CFO Total

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions - 4,57,131 | - 9,35,828 13,92,959
~ contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) | - - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - - -
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, ;

1961 _ ‘
2 | Stock Option - - - -
3 | Sweat Equity » - - - -

4 | Commission - - - -
- as % of profit - - - -
others, specify... - - - -




. VIL PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

 There were no Penalty / Punishment/ Compounding under Companies Act during
the year ended 31.03.2017. T

By Order of the Board

IFCI Financial Servicés Limited

S Usha Sregkumaran V Nair
Managing Director /' Director . ..
(DIN 03567757)  (DIN 02207516) o

Place: Chennai
Date: 26.09.2017

40 |




Annexure III

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

. Background:

1.1. The objective of Nomination and Remuneration Policy is to ensure rationale and
objectivity in the remuneration of the Directors, Senior Management & employees of
the Company.

1.2. The Policy also intends to bring in a pragmatic methodology in screenihg of candidates
who may be recommended to the position of Directors and to establish an effective
evaluation criteria to evaluate the performance of every Director and the overall Board

of the Company.

1.3. The Policy also intends to prevent the Board of Directors degenerating into a closed

and narrow entity, in which incumbent members appoint their own kind.

3

1.4. The Policy also serves as a guiding principle to ensure good Corporate Governance as

well as to provide sustainability to the Board of Directors of the Company.
. Framework

2.1. The requirement of formulating a Nomination and Remuneration Policy stems from the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enéctment(s) thereof for the time being in force.

2.2, Any other Law, Statute as may be applicable for the time being in Force.
. Objective

3.1. To identify suitable persons, interview them if necessary, and recommend them as
suitable candidates to fill up vacancies on the Board and Senior Management.

3.2. To develop a policy to ensure the optimum composition of the Board of Directors
ensuring a mix of knowledge, experience and expertise from diversified fields of

knowledge i.e. Policy on Board Diversity.

3.3. The Pdlicy also intends to add professionalism and objectivity in the process of deciding
Board membership.

A€




3.4. To lay down criteria for the evaluation of the Board

3.5.To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a Polic§/ thereon.

3.6. To formulate criteria for evaluation of Directors.

4. Eligibility criteria for recommending a candidate to be appointed on the Board of

Birectors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) may consider the following parameters

while considering the credentials of potential candidates for Directorship in the Company.

4.1. Educational qualification:

Possess any Graduation/ Post Graduation/M.Phil/Doctorate
Possess any other Professional Qualification/Degree/Diploma

S‘uch‘, other qualification as the NRC may deem fit

4.2. Experience/Expertise

To possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of |
finance, Iéw, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate
governance, technical operations or other disciplines related to the Company/’s
business. |

The candidate should preferably have undergone requisite training programme or mid -
career Professional Development trainings which would have enabled him/her to adapt

to changing dynamics of business environment.

4.3. Disqualifications

The Candidate should not be of unsound mind.

The Candidate should not be an undischarged insolvent.
The Candidate must not have applied to be adjudicated as an insolvent and his -
application must not be pending.

The Candidate must not have been convicted by a Court of any offence, whether
involving moral turpitude or otherwise, and sentenced in respect thereof to
impriisonment for not less than six (6) months.
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There must not be any order passed by Court or Tribunal disqualifying a person to be

appointed as a Director.

‘_There should not be any calls in respect of any shares of the Company held by him,

whether alone or jointly with others, and six months must not have elapsed from the
last date fixed for the payment of the call. ¢

The Candidate must not have been convicted of the offence dealing with related party
transactions under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 at any time during the last
preceding five (5) years. - |

The Candidate must be in possession of his Director Identification Number (DIN).

The Candidate is not or has not been a Director of a Company which has not filed
Financial Statements or Annual Returns for any continuous three 23) financial years.

The Candidate is not or has not been a Director of thé Company which has failed to
repay the deposits accepted by it or pay interest thereon or to redeem any debentures

- on the due date or pay interest due thereon or pay any dividend declared and such -

failure to pay or redeem continues for one year or more.
The Candidate should not have been found guilty of any offence consisting of violation
of Rules/ Regulations/ Legislative requirements by Customs/ Excise/ Income Tax

Authority/ Foreign Exchange/ Other Revenue Authorities.

4.4. Other Eligibility Criteria

Each director must be an individual of high personal and professional integrity and
ethical character.

The candidate should have exhibited behavior that indicates he or she is committed to
the highest ethical standards.

The candidate should not deprive the Company of any opportunity that belongs to the _
Company.

He should"not be in a position of diverting the corporate opportunity for own benefits or
to others, to the detriment of the Company. ‘

The candidate must not at any time compete with the company in respect of any
business transaction.

Each director must possess the ability to exercise sound business judgment on a broad
range of issues. ' .

The candidate has preferably had business, governmental, non-profit or professional

experience at the Chairman, Chief Executive Oflicer, Chief Operating Officer or
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*

equivalent policy-making and operational level of a large organization that indicates that
the candidate will be able to make a meaningful and immediate contribution to the
Board's discussion and decision-making on the array of complex issues facing a large
financial services business.

e The candidate has achieved prominence in his or her business, governrnental or
professional activities, and has built a reputation that demonstrates the ability to make
the kind of important and sensitive judgments that the Board is called upon to make.

o bThe Nomination and Remuneration Committee must be satisfied that the candidate will
effectively, consistently and appropriately take into account and balance the legitimate _

‘ interests and concerns of all of the company's stockholders and other stakeholders in
reaching dhecisions, rather than advancing the interests of a particular constituency.

e The Nomination and Remuneration Committee must satisfy itself that the candidate will
be able to devote suffioient time and energy to the performance of his or her duties as a
Director.

4.5. Criteria for independence — For Directors to be appointed as Independent
Director on the Board of the Company. '

e An ihdependent director in relation to a company, means a director other than a
| managing director or a whole-time director or a nominee director, -

(&) who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant

expertise and experience;

(b) (i) who is or was not a promoter of the company or its’holding, subsidiary or

associate company;

(i) who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary
or associate company; :

(c) who has or had no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary
or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, durind the two immediately

preceding financial years or during the current financial year;

(d) none of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the
_ company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, .

amounting to two per cent or more of its gross turnover or total income or fifty lakh

*
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rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower, during the two

immédiately preceding financial years or during the current financial year;
(e) who, neither himself nor any of his relatives—

- (i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been -
employee of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the
three financial years immediately precedmg the financialyear in which he is proposed to

be appomted

(ii) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in anybof thethree financial
years immediately preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed,
of—

(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company
i

or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or

(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its
~ holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten per cent. or more of the

gross turnover of such firm;

(iii) holds together with his relatives two per cent. or more of the totalvoting power of
the company; or

(iv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any nonprofit
organisation that receives twenty-five per cent. or more of its receipts from the
company, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsndnary or assoaate company

or that holds two per cent. or more of the total voting power of the

f

company; or
(f) who possesses such other qualifications as may be prescribed.

- Every independent director shall at the first meeting of the Board in which he -
participates as a director and thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every
financial year or whenever there is any change in the circumstances which may affect
his status as an independent director, give a declaration that he meets the criteria of

independence as provided in sub-section

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, “nominee director” means a director

nominated by any financial institution in pursuance of the pfovisions of any law for

G2




“the time being in force, or of any agreement, or appointed by any Government, or |

*

any other person to represent its interests.

§

5. Remuneration Policy

I. Board Level Remuneration Structure

1. For Executive Directors (Managing Director and Whole-time Directors)
Remuneration will be paid as approved from time to time subject to the approVaI of the Board
and Shareholders as the case may be and as per the applicable provisions of Companies Act,
2013 and under any other Act/ Rules/Regulations for the time being in force.

2. In case of Non-Executive/Independent Directors

(i) Sitting Fees —'As approved from time to time. The Sitting Fees may I;e revised by the Board
of Directors frorn time to time subject to the overall limits as prescribed under the applicable
provisions.

(i) Remuneration other than Sitting Fees - As approved from time to time.

IL. In case of Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees — ,

1. The pay structure of all Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees shall be considered

in accordance with qualification, experience and industrial standards.

6. Monitoring and Evaluation
The Nomination and remuneration Committee shall evaluate the performan_ce of the Directors

and the overall Board broadly on the basis of below mentioned criteria:

* Whether the Directors/Board have acted in accordance with the provisions of the Articles
of Association of the Company. | :

» The Committee shall assemble all information regarding a candidate's backgrouhd and
qualifications to determine if the candidate possesses or satisfies athe minimum skills and
qualifications that a director must possess.

e The ‘Committee shall evaluate a candidate’'s mix of skills and qualifications and

determine the contribution the candidate could be expected to make to the overall

functioning of the Board.

WY
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The Committee shall give due consideration to the overall Board balance of diversity of
perspectives, backgrounds and experiences.

With respect to current directors, the Committee shall consider past attendance at
meetings and assess the participation in and contributions to the activities of the Board.
Whether the Directors/Board have acted in good faith in order to promote the objects of
the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in the best interests of the
Company, its employees, the shareholders, the Community and for the protection of
~ environment. )

Whether the Director/Board has exercised their duties with due and reasonable care,
skill !and diligence and whether the Director/Board have - exercised independent
judgment. ,

Whether the Director/Board have involved in a situation in which he/they may have a
direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interest of the
Company.

The Committee shall recommend director to the Board based on its assessment of

overall suitability to serve on the Board in accordance with this Policy.

. Board Diversity

e The Nomination and remuneration Committee shall ensure that the Board comprises of

Directors from diversified fields of Knowledge.

The Board should have Directors who can add professionalism and objectivity in the

decision making process.

The overall Board should reflect representatives from areas like finance, law,
accountancy, administration and other disciplines concerning the operational interests of
‘the Company at large. :
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Indian Audit and Accounts Department

Office of the Principal Director of Commercial Audit

and ex-officio Member Audit Board, Chennai
22.09.2017

CONFIDENTIAL

* No. PDCA/CHENNAY/CA TII/Cord/IFIN/2-11 1/2017-18/419

To

The Managing Director,
- IFCI Financial Services Limited,
- 142, Continental Chambers, M.G. Road,
Nungambakkam, Chennai-34.

e - Sir,‘ N

' Sub:  Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143 (6)
' ' (b} of the Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements ‘of IFCI Financial
Services Limited (Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statement), Chennai for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

EE T T

I forward herewith the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
Section 143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements of IFCI Financial
Services Limited (Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statement), Chennai, Yor the year ended
Si March 20{17. | ' ,
Five éopics of Printed Annual Report of your Company may be arranged to be forwarded to
-this office.
. The receipt of this letter may kindly be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully,

L o
Q..
(E. SRINIVASAN)
PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL AUDIT
AND EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, AUDIT BOARD, CHENNAI

Encl: Audit Certificate

| Sfeget andar waet, waR - 2, 139, WaTe siteh wref, B3 600 034
! L Indian Oil Bhavan, Level - 2, 139, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Chennai ~ §00 0.:)‘4
’ Tel. : 044-28330147 Fax : 044-28330142/45 e-mail mabchennai@cag.gov.in
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) READ WITH SECTION 129(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. OF IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES
LIMITED, CHENNALFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of IFCI Financial Services Limited, Chennai
for the year ended 31 March 2017 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
under the Company’s Act, 2013, (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The
statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5)
read with section 129(4) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under section 143 read with section 129(4) of the Act based on independent audit in
accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is
stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 05.05.2017.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit
under section 143(6)(a) read with section 129(4) of the Act of the consolidated financial statements
of IFCI Financial Services Limited, Chennai for the year ended 31 March 2017. We conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of IFCI Financial Services Limited and TFIN Credit
Limited but did not conduct supplementary audit of financial statements. of IFIN Securities Finance
Limited & IFIN Commodities Limited for the year ended on that date. This supplementary audit has
been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is

lunited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective .

examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, I would er to highlight the following significant matters under
section 143(6)(b) read with section 129(4) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in
my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the
related audit report.

Notes to the Financial Statements and Independent Auditor’s Report

As per Ministry of Corporate Affair’s notifications dated 30® March 2017, every Company shall
disclose the details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8
November 2016 to 30 December 2016 in its Financial Statements and that the Independent
Auditors’ Report should contain a comment as to whether the company had provided requisite
disclosures in its financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in SBN during the above
period and if so, whether these are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the
company. :

However, the Company as well as the Statutory Auditors did not comply with the above
notifications as neither the Company made the above disclosure in the Financial Statements nor the
Statutory Auditors commented upon the same in their Report.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

) i‘;%
. Yoo
(E. SRINTVASAN)

PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL AUDIT
AND EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, AUDIT BOARD, CHENNAI
Place: Chennai : : .
Date: 22.09.2017 '
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-COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED, CHENNAI FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

The preparation of financial statements of IFCI Financial Services Limited, Chennai for the year
ended 31 March 2017 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory
auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act
are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section

. 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 05 May
2017, : '

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit
under section 143(6) () of the Act of the financial statements of IFCI Financial Services Limited,
Chennai for the year ended 31 March 2017. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily
to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of
the accounting records. C

Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to highlight the following significant matters under
section 143(6) (a) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary
for enabling better understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report.

Independent Auditor’s Report ‘ .

(a) As per-Ministry of Corporate Affair’s notification dated 30™ March 2017, the Independent

Auditors® Report should contain a comment as to whether the company had provided requisite
disclosures in its financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank
Notes (SBN) during the period from 8™ November 2016 to 30" December 2016 and if so,
whether these are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the company.

However, the Statutory Auditors did not comply with the notification as the above comment
was not included in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

(b) In item No, XVI of the Annexure B of the Independent Auditor’s Report, the reference to
Section. 45-A of RBI Act, 1934 is incorrect and the same should have been Section 45-JA.
Despite being a repeated mistake, Statutory Auditors failed to rectify the same.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL AUDIT
AND EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, AUDIT BOARD, CHENNAI
Place: Chennai
Date: 22.09.2017
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- FORM NO. AOC -2

Annexure V

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule

8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Forrh for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso

thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s‘length basis.
SL. Particulars Details
No.

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | Nil
relationship

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil

c) Duration of the | Nil
contracts/arrangements/transaction

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | Nil
or transaction including the value, if any

1 e) Justification for entering into such contracts or | Nil

arrangements or transactions’ '
f) Date of approval by the Board Nil
g) | Amount paid as advances, if any | Nil
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed | Nil
. in General meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188

Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
SL. Particulars Details
No.

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | Nil
relationship -
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil
o) Duration of the | Nil
'| contracts/arrangements/transaction |
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | Nil
or transaction including the value, if any

5




e) Date of approval by the Board Nil

f) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

*

By Order of the Board

IFCI Financial Services Limited

<.

i

QBaRETTIET)
Place: Chennai

Date: 26.09.2017




PON RA] & CO. : H.O. : TRADE CENTRE, Il FLOOR,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ' ' 108, WALLAJAH ROAD,
CHENNAI-600 002.
Phone :044-28549953
Fax : 044-28528443
Cell : 94440 49953
E-mail : ponrajca@gmail.com
Website : www.ponrajandco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ‘REPORT

10
The Members of IFCI Financial Services Limited
REPORT ON STAND ALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of IFCI Financial Services Limited (*the Company’),
which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management responsibility for the Financial Statements:

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters specified in section 134(5) of the
~ ‘Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view of financial position, financial performance and-cash flow of Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the accounting standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. This responsibility also
includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Interal
Financial Control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view-and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility:
Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on dur audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting -and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the Audit Report under the provisions of the Act and the rules made
there under. ' ’

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements are free -from’ teg

misstatement.

Branches at Tnchy, Sivakasi, Vlrudhunagar Tiruppur and Gudiyatham
é‘”}@




PONRAJ & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

An audit invc_;lves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
_assessment of the risk of material misstatement of Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers Internal Financial Control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the Financial Statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Financial Statements. '

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements, read with Note's to Accounts give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India; , '

a. In the case of the Balance Shest of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2017;
b. In the case of the statement of Profit and Loss, of the LOSS for the year ended on that date; and
C. Inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure .
B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary forthe purpose of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books, As per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has branch office(s) only for marketing purposes. Hence, no
requirement to consider report of Branch Auditor and dealt with it in preparing our report,

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement d
-~ this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

e
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
: specified uhder Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014,

-€) On the basis of written representation received from the Directors as on 31 March 2017, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2017,
from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequate Internal Financial Control over financial reporting of the Company
~and in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our Report in Annexure
A. This is also reviewed by KPMG in their Report “Evaluation of Internal Financial Control”

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule
11 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given fo us:
i) The Company has pending litigations against it to the tune of Rs. 128.88 lakhs and its impact
cannot be ascertained,
if) The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which
there are any material foreseeable losses.
iif) The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection
~ Fund by the Company. ’

3. As per Directions issued by the C & AG of India under section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013,
we report that: '
1. As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company do not hold any
freehold or lease hold land as on the Balance Sheet date. .
2. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of audit carried
out by us, we note that there are no cases of waiver / write off of debts during the year,
3. The Company does not hold inventory and have not received any assets as gifts / grants
from the Government or other authorities. Hence, reporting under this sub-direction does

not arise.
: For PONRAJ & CO
Place: Chennai Chartered Accountants

Dated: 05.05.2017 : : _FRN: 092672S

M.NO: 15274
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of M/s. IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2017;

‘Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (j) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. IFCI Financial Services
- Limited (‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls _ .
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial Controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1ICAF). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
“Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance note .on audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the standards on auditing (the
‘Standards’) issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies-Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

S
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‘Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting e
A company's internal financial contro over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
-assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for -
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
- maintenance of records that, 'in “reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

* - dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
85 necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
-accounting principles, -and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in -
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
'assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the .-
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
~ Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
~over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial Controls over
financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note issued by
the ICA, R ‘ :

_ For PONRAJ & CO
. Place: Chennai o Chartered Accountants
Dated: 05.05.17 o _ FRN: 0026728

M.NO: 15274
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ANNEXURE “B” REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
ACCOUNTS OF IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017:

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets. :

(b) The physical verification of fixed assets is being done by the Company once in a year which

in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of business. o
During the year the assets have been physically verified by the Management and no major
variations noticed. '

. (c) As per our verification and explanations given to us, the Company is not having any
immovable property in its name,

if) The Company does not have any inventory; therefore, clause 3(ii) of the order is not
applicable,

-iii) The Company has granted secured loan to companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the terms and
conditions, repayments and interest payments have been compiled with.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
compiled in the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the respect
of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

V) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules-framed there under,
wherever applicable. Therefore the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the services rendered by the Company.

vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records produced before
us for verification, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth tax, Service tax,
Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value added tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities,

O~
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vili) . The Company has not defaulted any repayment to financial institutions. The Company has not
taken any loan from banks or government, The Company has no debenture holders,

ix) The Company has not raised any fund through IPO/term loan.

X) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to information and explanations givento
us, we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

xi) . The Company made has paid managerial remuneration as per provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule (v) of the Companies Act 2013.

'xii)  The Company is nota Nidhi Company; clause (xii) is not applicable.

xiii) As per information given to us, all the transactions to which section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act 203 applies, have been disclosed by the Company as required by applicable
Accounting Standards.

xiv)  As per information given to us, the Company has not made any‘ preferential issue/ private

" placement of shares/debentures during the year. Hence this clause is not applicable.

Xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors or other persons
to whom the provisions of section 192 of the Act applies.

xvi)  The Cqmpany is not required to be registered under section 45A of RBI Act 1934.

' For PONRAJ & CO

Place: Chennai Chartered Accountants

Dated: 05.05.17 ‘ ' FRN: 0926728 °

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income tax,
Sales tax, Wealth tax, Service tax or Duty of customs or Duty of excise or Value added tax or
Cess which  have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The disputed tax on the
addition of Rs. 9,12,999 for the A.Y 2011-12 and an appeal has been filed.

- M.NO: 15274
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IFCI Financial Services Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2017

{Amount in Rs.)

Note

As at 31st March 2017

Particulars No As at 31st March 2016
I. |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
"1 |Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 2 415,337,090 415,337,090
{b}) Reserves and surplus 3 288,397,884 288,417,926
3 |Non-current liabilities
{(a) Long-term borrowings - -
{a) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2,766,999 2,766,999
(b) Other Long term liabilities 4 6,626,724 6,689,988
(c) Long-term provisions - -
4 |Current liabilities
{a)  Short-term borrowings - -
{b) Trade payables 231,726,357 141,412,793
{(c) Other current liabilities 5 17,985,165 23,541,507
(d) Short-term provisions 6 6,677,614 3,780,009
TOTAL 969,517,834 881,946,312
Il. |ASSETS
1 [Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 7
(i) Tangible assets 3,145,204 4,212,684
(i) Intangible assets 1,975,375 2,210,258
(b) Nen-current investments 8 385,223,063 385,223,063
{c) Deferred tax assets (net) - -
(d) Long-term loans and advances 9 140,263,436 35,580,716
(e) Other non-current assets - -
2 |Current assets
(a) Current investments 10 15,914,685 11,212,693
{b) Trade receivables 1 75,056,628 103,687,265
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 12 264,852,554 239,337,128
(d} Short-term loans and advances 13 73,427,071 75,675,573
(e) Other current assets ' 14 9,659,818 24,806,932
TOTAL 969,517,834 881,946,312

The Notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of Balance Sheet

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our Report of even date

For PONRAJ &GO pyNRAJ & Co.,

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

FRN /0026725

Pariner

Partner, M.No 15274

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

g =

S. Usha

Managing Director

Place : Chennai 0 ﬁ Aby Eapen

Nata: NE/NS /017
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IFCI Finanéial Services Limited
Profit and loss statement for the period ended 31st March 2017

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars Note | For the Period ended | For the Period ended
No. 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
L. [Revenue from operations ¢ 15 130,435,064 116,083,680
Hl. [Other Operating Income 16 12,913,861 13,264,119
il 1Other Income 17 39,627,092 52,786,522
IV. [Total Revenue (1 + Il + )] 182,976,018 182,134,321
V. [Expenses:

Employee benefits expense 18 95,495,763 84,230,133

Finance costs 19 2,680,972 1,969,504

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,411,819 2,042,004

Other expenses 20 95,054,061 91,017,784

Total expenses (V) 194,642,614 179,259,515
V1. |Profit before bad & doubtful debts and tax {IV - V) * (11,666,596) 2,874,806
VL. {Provision for bad & Doubtful debts 21 (11,646,555) 10,309,405

Exceptional Items -Interest received
VIl 1Profit before extraordinary items and tax (Vi - Vi) (20,041) (7,434,599)
IX. [Extraordinary Items

X. |Profit before tax (VI -VII) {20,041) (7,434,599)
Xl. |Tax expense;

- Current Tax / Deferred Tax - -

- Deferred Tax Reversal (Net) - (122,392)
Xil_|Profit (Loss) after tax (VIH -IX) {20,041) (7,311,607)
Xill |Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations - -
XIV [Tax expense of discontinuing operations - -
XV .

Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax} (XHI - XIv) - -
XV | Profit (Loss) for the period (Xil + XV) (20,041) (7,311,607)

Xlll{Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic (0.00) (0.18)
(2} Diluted (0.00) {0.18)

The Notes 1 & 15to0 21 form an integral part of Statement of Profit and Loss
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our Report of even date

For PONRAJ & CO.,

Cha

FRN ooz,&;Eg)r

red-Accountants - -

PONRAJ & Co., .

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Chartered Accountants . -

Partner, M.No 15274

-Place :
" -Date: 05/05/2017

Partney

Chennai

2%,
B

s

S. Usha
Managing Director

Aby Eapen
Company Secretary

Biswajit Banerjee
Chairman

N

AV Pushparaj
Chief Financial Officer




1FCE FINANUIAL SERVICEDS LIV ED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS ON 315T MARCH 2017

{Amount in Rs)

Year ended Year ended
, Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
A |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Net Profit befor tax {20,041) (7,434,599)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation / Amortisation on Fixed Assets 1,411,819 2,042,094
Dividend Received (considered seperately under
Investment Activities) (174,279) (169,634)
Finance Cost (considered seperately under Finance
Activities) 2,680,972 1,968,504
interest income (21,943,080) (20,804,746) )
Profit/(Loss) on Fixed Asset - (18,024,568) (18,682,315) {35,645,096)
A |Operation Profit before Working Capital Changes {18,044,610) {43,079,695)
Adjustments for:
(Increase} / Decrease in Current Investments {4,701,992) 6,476,369
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 28,630,637 4,057,390
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advances (102,434,218) (6,892,663)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current Assets 15,147,114 (11,485,836)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable 90,313,564 15,711,835
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 2,897,605 801,058 :
Increase / (Decrease) in Non - Current Liabilities {5,619,606) 24,233,105 | (4,518,382) 4,149,771
Cash Generated from Operation before tax 6,188,495 (38,929,924)
Direc! taxes paid - -
Net cash from Operating Activities 6,188,495 (38,929,924)
B |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ’
Purchase of Fixed Assets (109,456) (370,262)
Decrease in Capital advance - -
{Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposits (21,620,023) (20,084,314)
Dividend Received 174,279 169,634
Interest received 21,943,080 20,804,746
investment in subsidaries .-
Sale of Fixed Assets - 31,394,458
Net Cash used in / raised from Investing Activities 387,880 31,914,262
C |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Short term Borrowing(net) }
Finance Cost {2,680,972) (1,969,504)
ﬁepayment of Loans - -
(2,680,972) (1,969,504)
Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalent {a+b+c) 3,895,403 (8,985,166)
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalent 41,884,312 50,869,478
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent 45,779,715 41,884,312
Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent 3,895,403 {8,985,166)

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "indirect method" set out in Accouning Standard-3 on Cash Flow Satement issued

as per Company's Accounitng Standard Rules,2006.
This s the Cash Flow referred to our report of even date
For PONRAJ & CO.n .. PONRAJ & Co., .
For P ;
Chart, redAccountanEo Chartered Accountants .
FRN {00z6725 ,

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

W\/@&
s~

" S.Usha
Partner Managing Director

Ab@

é}”% Company Secretary

Biswajit Banerjee
Chairman

Partner, M.No 15274

-

AV Pushparaj

Place : Chennai
Chief Financial Officer

Date : 05/05/2017




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Note no. 2 Share Capital (Amount in Rs.)
- As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Particulars .
. Number Rs. Number Rs.
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5,00,00,000 | 50,00,00,000 | 5,00,00,000| 50,00,00,000
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 41,533,709 415,337,090 41,533,709 41,53,37,090
Subscribed & Paid up . :
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 41,533,709 | 415,337,090 | 41,533,709 415,337,090
Suhscribed but not fully Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, not fully paid up - - -
Total 41,533,709 415,337,090 41,533,709 415,337,090

Disclosure pursuant to Note no. 6{A)(d) of Part I of Schedule Vi to the Companies Act, 1956
(Following disclosure should be made for each class of Shares)

As at 31st March 2017

: Equity Shares March 2016
Particulars Number Rs. Number Rs.
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 41,533,709 415,337,090 41,533,709 415,337,090
Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 41,533,709 | 415,337,090 | 41,533,709 415,337,090

3,93,63,809 Equity Shares (Previous year 3,93,63,809 equity shares) are held by IFCI Limited, the holding company and its

nominees.
As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
held held
IFCI Limited and nominees 39,363,809 94.78 39,363,809 94.78
Ms. Chandra Ramesh 1,757,619 4.23 1,757,619 4.23
Mr. DV Ramesh 412,281 0.99 412,281 0.99

On 01st November 2011, 3,24,60,622 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each were allotted to IFCI Ltd for
consideration other than cash on preferential basis by convertion of debt of Rs.76.25 Crore into equnty

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity share, i.e. equity shares having face value, of e~ "‘%

Rs.10/- per share entitled to one vote per share,




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITE_D
Note No. 3 Reserves and Surplus

{Amount in Rs.)

particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2017 2016
A. Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 451,643,790 451,643,790
Add : Securities premium credited on Share issue - -
For Issuing Bonus Shares - -
Closing Balance 451,643,790 451,643,790
.|B. Other Reserves (Specifiy the nature and purpose of
each reserve)
i)Amalgamation Reserve:
Opening Balance 9,763,970 9,763,970
(+) Current Year Transfer - -
{-) written Back in Current Year - -
Closing Balance 9,763,970 9,763,970
ii) General Reserve:;
Opening Balance 9,179,620 9,179,620
(+) Current Year Transfer - -
(=) Written Back in Current Year - -
“|Closing Balance 9,179,620 9,179,620
C. Surplus: ,
Opening balance (182,169,454) (174,096,973)
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year (20,041) (7,311,607)
(-) Adjustment for Fixed Asset - 760,874
(+) Transfer from Reserves - -
(-) Transfer to Reserves - -
Closing Balance (182,189,496) {182,169,454)
Total 288,397,884 288,417,926
-_Nate No, 4 Other Long Term Liabilities {Amount in Rs. )
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2017 2016
(a)Security Deposit and Sundry deposits 6,626,724 6,689,988
Total 6,626,724 6,689,988




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICE_S LIMITED
Note No. 5 Other Current Liabilities

{Amount in Rs.)

As at 31st March
Particulars As at 31st March 2017 2016
Other payables
Creditors for expenses 2,569,605 2,029,353
Statutory dues 13,595,553 20,414,666
Other liabilities 1,820,008 1,097,488
Total 17,985,165 23,541,507
Note No. 6 Short Term Provisions )
As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2017 2016
(a) Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity - 187,996
Leave Encashment 5,881,595 1,766,366
Bonus 796,019 1,825,647
Total 6,677,614 3,780,009
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note 8 Non Current Investments

(Amount in Rs.)

As at 31st March

. As at 31st March
Particulars 2017 2016
Other Investments (Refer B below)
{a) Investment Properties
{b) Investment in Equity instruments 385,223,063 385,223,063
Total 385,223,063 385,223,063
Less : Provision for dimunition in the - -
vaiue of Investments
Total 385,223,063 - 385,223,063
Particulars Asat31stMarch | Asat31st March
- 2017 2016
Aggregate amount of quoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 385,223,063 385,223,063
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note 9 Long Term Loans and Advances

(Ambunt inRs.)

Particulars

As at 31st March
2017

As at 31st March
2016

a. Capital Advances

Secured, considered good
‘|unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful advances

b. Security Deposits

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good *
Doubtful

c. Loans and advances to related parties

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances

d. Other loans and advances (specify nature)
Other Loans & Advances

Advance Tax {net of provisions)

Doubtful

131,363,930

30,963,430

131,363,930

30,963,430

8,899,506

4,617,286

8,899,506

4,617,286

Total

140,263,436

35,580,716
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED .

75,056,628 ) -

Note 10 Current Investments: . {Amount in Rs.)
. As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars
| 2017 2016
1(a) Investment in Equity instruments 33,971,809 34,772,801
{b) Investments in preference shares - -
Total (A) 33,971,809 34,772,801
Less : Provision for dimunition in the value of
Investments 18,057,124 23,560,108
Total 15,914,685 11,212,693
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2017 2016
Aggregate amount of guoted investments 15,914,685 11,212,693
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - -
Note 11 Trade receivable {(Amount in Rs. }
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2017 2016
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six - -
months from the date they are due for payment
Secured, considered good 71,689,973 57,518,238
Unsecured, considered good 43,758,222
Unsecured, considered doubtful 896,432 108,294
72,586,405 101,384,754
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 896,432 108,294
71,689,973 101,276,460
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding
six months from the date they are due for payment - -
Secured, considered good 3,366,654 1,912,259
Unsecured, considered good - 498,546
Unsecured, considered doubtful 131,719,017 138,650,726
135,085,671 141,061,531
Less: Provision for doubtful debts* 131,719,017 138,650,726
* Includes Rs. 1,25,66,906 receivables from IFC .
Limited ' 3,366,655 2,410,805
Total - - ~»-103,687,265




JFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIVITED
Note 12 Cash and cash equivalents {Amount in Rs.).
Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
a. Balances with banks
In Current Accounts with Banks - 45,779,096 - 41,873,677
Fixed Deposit - 219,072,839 - 197,452,816
Other Commitments - -
Cash equivalents and Bank Deposits
(Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity) 82,194,759 70,823,583
b. Cheques, drafts on hand - - - -
c. Cash on hand - 619 - . 10,635
Total - 264,852,554 - 239,337,128
The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period 8-11-2016 to
30-12-2016 as provided in the Table below:—
SBNs Other denomination notes Total
100*60 No's, 50*1 No & 1*3
_|Closing cash in hand as on 8-11-2016 - No's 6053.93 Dr
(+) Permitted receipts - 100*1250 No's 125000 Dr
(-} Permitted payments - 100*1231 No's & 1*10 No. 1,23,110Cr
(-) Amount deposited in Banks - - -
Closing cash in hand as on 30-12-2016 - 7943.93 Dr
Note 13 Short term loans and advances {Amount in Rs. )
Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
<va, L~ans and advances to related parties
Secured, considered good - - -
Unsecured, considered good 665,431 - 1,516,722 -
{Doubtful - - - -
- 665,431 - 1,516,722
b. Others
Other Loans and Advances 36,169,797 - 28,641,023 -
Advance Tax {net of provisions) 33,461,617 - 33,479,111 -
Sundry Deposits - 3,628,068 -
Prepaid Expenses 3,130,226 - 8,410,649 -
Secured, considered good 72,761,640 - 74,158,851
- 72,761,640 - 74,158,851
Total - 73,427,071 - 75,675,573
Note 14 Other current assets
Particulars As at 31st | As at 31st Mar
March 2017 2016
Interest accrued on Deposits 9,659,818 24,806,932
linterest Receivable - -
Total 9,659,818 | 24,806,932
&g Y




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES iIMITED
Note 15 Revenue from Operations

{Amount in Rs}

Particulars For the Year ended| For the Year ended
feuia 31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016
Brokerage On Stock Broking 111,012,803 103,635,385
Commission On Mutual Fund 5,550,528 2,132,670
Insurance Commission 97,622 72,289
Loan Syndication Fee 1,405,435 179,277
Fees for Merchant Banking - 400,000
Depository Income 5,732,829 4,258,613
Commision From IPO / Bonds 4,938,841 3,020,279
Commision On Fixed deposits 1,317,378 2,163,483
Account Opening Charges 205,350 52,050
Dividend income 174,279 169,634
Total 130,435,064 116,083,680
Note 16 Other Operating Income
Particulars For the Year ended| For the Year ended
31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016
Sale of Power / Electricity - 356,990
Delayed Payment Interest 12,913,861 12,907,129
Total 12,913,861 13,264,119
" Note 17 Other Income
Particulars For the Year ended| For the Year ended
31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016
Rental Income 2,627,949 2,782,956
Miscellaneous Income 14,881,477 10,516,505
Profit on sale of Asset - 18,682,315
Interest Income 21,943,080 20,804,746
Profit on Sale of Investments 174,586 -
Total 39,627,092 52,786,522
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Note 18 Empoyee Benefits expense . {Amount in Rs)
. For the Year For the Year ended
Particulars ended 31st March
31st March 2016
2017
(a) Salaries and incentives . 86,387,789 76,145,218
(b) Contributions to -
Provident fund & Employee State Insurance
5,331,007 5,407,020
Gratuity fund contributions 1,407,265 203,724
{c) Staff welfare expenses . 2,369,702 2,474,171
Total . 95,495,763 84,230,133
Note 19 Finance Costs
Particulars t=.nd':ec:ir ;Z:tyl\:aa:ch For the Year ended
’ 31st March 2016
2017
Interest expenses - -
Bank Financial Gharges 2,680,972 1,969,504
Total 2,680,972 1,969,504
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

" Note: 20 Other Expenses {Amount in Rs)
Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended

31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016

Fees To Clearing Member 1,565,918 1,444,489
Information Technology Exp 11,127,252 - 696,876
Data Feed Charges 2,078,323 | 1,282,617
Depository Participant Expenses 1,288,376 300,813
Broking Stamp Expenses 26,400 18,560
Professional & Consultancy Charges 25,166,006 23,647,460
Transaction Charges 1,836,464 1,672,129
Advertisement 141,386 374,134
Audit Fees 755,000 755,000
Electricity Charges 4,309,357 4,058,594
Insurance Expenses 1,446,577 986,670
Commission Paid 9,977,883 3,985,232
Postage & Telegram 930,877 1,015,174
Printing & Stationery 1,207,767 1,357,554
Rent 23,385,477 27,018,888
Rates & Taxes 168,641 1,421,810
Repairs & Maintenance 1,114,977 1,644,844
Sitting Fees 385,500 315,000
h:ambership Fee And Subscription 7,059,310 5,653,247
Telephone Expenses 4,440,820 6,195,606
Training Expenses 107,433 163,499
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 1,195,371 1,877,168
Office Maintenance 3,038,966 2,634,648
Business Development Expenses 38,951 211,680
Other Administrative Expenses 2,261,030 2,286,092
TOTAL 95,054,061 91,017,784

IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note: 21 Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts

{Amount in Rs)

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

Particul
articutars 31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016
Diminution in the value of shares (Net) (5,502,984) 6,476,370
Bad Debts Written off -
Provision for Doubtful Debts and Adv (6,143,571) 3,833,035
TOTAL (11,646,555)| - - -- 10,309,405
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Note No. 1

A. Significant Accounting Policies:

The financial accounts have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in compliance with all material aspects, in accordance with

applicable Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Use of Estimates:
The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with the generally accepted

accounting principles requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

‘the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent

assets and liabilities. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial
statements are based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as
of the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and
assumptions used in preparing the accompanying financial statements. Any differences of actual
results to such estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known /

materialized.

Revenue Recognition:
Broking Income

Brokerage Income is recognized on the trade date of the transaction upon confirmation of
the transactions by the exchanges.

Interest Income
Interest earned on fixed ihcome bearing securities is accounted on a time proportion basis

taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

- Loan Syndication Fees

® Loan Syndication Fees are recognized when the right to receive the income is established.

Income from Depository Segment

* Depository Services incomes are recognized on the basis of agreements entered into with
clients and when the right to receive the income is established.

Insurance Income

® Insurance Comm:ss:on from Agency business is booked upon actual recelpt of commission

from the principal.




Commission from marketing of Mutual Fund units and Bonds
* The Company is accounting for commission from marketing of mutual fund units and Bonds

* on accrual basis.

Equity Index/Stock ~ derivatives

= Equity Index/Stock Futures are marked to market on daily basis. Debitor ~ Credit Balances
disclosed under Current Assets or Current liabilities respectively represent the net amount
paid or received on the basis of movement of prices in the Index Stock Futures till the
Balance sheet date.

* As at the Balance sheet date, the profit or loss on open positions are accounted  for

as follows:
The unrealized profit determined Scrip wise/Index wise, being anticipated profit, is
ignored and no credit is taken in the profit and loss account. The unrealized loss
‘determined Scrip wise/Index wise, being anticipated loss, is recognized in the profit and
loss account.

*  On final settlement or squaring-up of contracts for Equity Index/Stock Futures, . the
profit or loss is calculated as difference between settlement/squaring-up  price  and
contract price. Accordingly, debit or credit balance pertaining to the settled/squared-up
contract is recognized as profit or loss upon expiry/squaring-up of the contracts. When
more than one contract in respect of the relevant series of Equity Index/Stock Futures
contract to which the squared-up contract pertains is outstanding at the time of the
squaring-up of the contract, the contract price of the contract so squared-up is determined
using weighted average method for calculating profit/loss on squaring up.

* Initial and additional margin paid over and above initial margin, for entering into  contracts

for Equity Index/Stock Futures, which are released on final settlement/squarmg—up of

underlying contracts, are disclosed under Current Assets.

Dividend Income
* Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is

established.

Income from sale of electricity
* Units generated from windmills are sold to the Tamil Nadu Electncuty Board (TNEB) at agreed

rates and the income is included in the value of power genggage from windmills.
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VI.

ViL.

Investments:

The Company acquires holds and deals in shares in its own account also. The investments
intended to be held for one year or more were classified as long-term investments and
provision for diminution .in the value of long term investments being made only if such a
decline is other than temporary.

Current investments are considered as stock in trade and are valued at lower of cost or net

realizable value.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.

’ Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recognized if they are separately identifiable and the Company controls
the future economic benefits arising out of them. All other expenses on intangible items are
charged to the profit and loss account.

The computer software is identified as Intangible assets and useful life for these asset is 10
years as per schedule It of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on the fixed assets is provided on the written down value method in the

manner prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Impairment of Assets:

An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the period/year in which the
said asset is identified as impaired. An impairment loss recognized in prior accounting

periods is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

' Employee Benefits:

Employee benefits comprise both Defined contribution plan and Defined benefit plans. All
short term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis during the accounting
period based on services rendered by employees. '

Defined contribution plan -

(a) The Company’s Provident Fund Scheme and Employee State insurance scheme are
defined contribution plan and company’s contribution paid/payable is recognized as

expense in Profit & Loss account during the period m/wj;& éthéw‘é-r?r‘lployee renders the
S )

related service.




'(b) The Company’s liability towards Gratuity is a Defined Benefit Plan. The liability towards
Gratuity is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognizes each period
of service as giving rise to additional unit of Employee benefit entitlement. The gratuity
Scheme is operated through Group gratuity Scheme of LIC. The gratuity liabilities are
provided based on Actuarial Valuation certified by LIC. Actuarial gains and losses are charged
to Profit and Loss Account.
= Compensated Absence-Leave Salary ‘

| The policy provides for that an employee is entitled to 24 days of earned lea\)e per year and
maximum of 15 days leave standing to the credit of the employee at the end of the calendar
year will be paid as leave salary calculated on the Gross pay along with December/January
month salary of the immediate hext célendar year. The expenses on account thus arising are

recognized in the profit and loss account.

VL. Borrowing Costs:
Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised. Other

Interest and borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

IX. Taxation:
Income Tax expense comprises current tax as determined in accordance with the income tax laws
and deferred tax charge or credit reflecting the tax effect of the timing differences between
accounting income and taxable income for the year. The deferred tax charge or credit and the
corresponding deferred tax liability / assets are recognized applying the tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized

' only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty that such assets can be realized in future.

X. Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and it is

probable that there will be outflow of resources.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed without making a provision in books when there is an

obligation that may, but probably will not require outflow of resources.

Contingent assets are not recognized/ disclosed in the financial statements.




B. Notes forming part of the Accounts

. Nature of Business:
The Company is a SEBI registered Stock Broker on Nataonal Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE),
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and Multi Commodity Stock Exchange (MCX-SX) and primarily

engaged in the business of providing securities market related transaction services.

II.  Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
{a) Bank guarantees aggregating to Rs. 20,70,00,000 (Previous Year? Rs. 21,70,00,000 /-) to
_National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Rs. 3,00,00,000/- (Previous Year —
3,00,00,000/-) to Bombay Stock Excﬁange and Rs. 1,00,00 000/- (Previous Year —
1,00,00,000) to MCX-SX Stock Exchange as on 31" March 2017 for meeting margin

requirements.

(b) The Company has pledged fixed deposits aggregating to Rs.12,35,00,000 /- (Prev:ous
Year — Rs. 12,75,00,000 /-) with banks for obtaining the above bank guarantees.

(c) Counter guarantee given by the Parent Company (IFCI Limited) to banks for issue of bank
guarantee to the subsidiary company IFCI Financial Services Limited — Rs.30,00,00,000/-
(previous year — Rs.30,00,00,000/-).

(d) Other Contingent liabilities — The Clients has lodged two cases against the company

which is pending as follows.

Forum before which the cases are No. of Amount
pending cases (Rs. In Lakhs)
14th Additional City Civil Court, Bangalore 1 127.45
District Court, Patiala House, New Delhi 1 1.43

m. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account and not provided

for (net of advances) is Rs. NIL {Previous Year—Nil} .- oo
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V.

V.

Managerial Remuneration:

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
To Whole Time Director
{a) Salary and Allowances - -
(b) Contribution to PF and other funds - -
To Managing Director
(On deputation from IFCI Limited)
(a) Salary and Allowances 30,09,440 24,44,008
{(b) Contribution to PF and other funds 1,75,806 4,35,960
Total 31,85,246 28,79,968

Earnings Per Share:

The Earning per Share [EPS] has been computed in accordance with the Accounting Standard

20 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The numerators and

denominators used to calculate the EPS are:

Ason Ason

Particulars 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Net Loss for the year available for the equity share
holders (Before extra-ordinary ltem) (20,041) (73,11,606)
Nominal value per equity share 10 10
Weighted Average No. of outstanding equity shares ’
during the year — Basic & Diluted. 4,15,33,709 4,15,33,709
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (Before extra-
ordinary ltem) (0.00) (0.18)
Net Loss for the year available for the equity share ‘
holders (After extra-ordinary item) (20,041 (73,11,606)

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (After extra-

ordinary Item)




Vi, Current and Deferred Taxation:
(a) No provision for current tax has been made due to losses.

(b)During the year the tax effect on timing difference has resulted in Deferred Tax Liability and

the same has been duly accounted as under:

Ason 31-03-2017 | Ason 31-03-2016

Deferred Tax Asset / Liability :
(Rs.) (Rs.)

Deferred Tax Liability — Fixed
27,66,999 27,66,999

Assets (accumulated depreciation)

VII.  Details of Auditors Remuneration (Excluding Service Tax):

Nature of Service 2016-17 2015-16 i

Statutory Audit Fee 5,00,000 5,00,000
Consolidation Fee 75,000 75,000
For quarterly reporting and '
Consolidating financial
statements 1,80,000 1,80,000
Tax Audit 25,000 40,000
Other services - 100,000

' Total 780000 | 895000

2y,
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VIll.  Disclosure as per AS-17 ‘Segmental Reporting’
(In Lakhs )
i Mutual
Particulars Brokerage Merch.ant Depository | Funds Ir}surance PMS Windmill Total
Banking income
*External -Segment
Revenue 1393.62 0.00 57.33 118.95 14.15 0.00 0.00 1584.05
(1,27413)  (179) @259 5553 (2236) (-) (180.07) (1,585.46)
Inter Segment ' '
Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
' (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
Total Revenue 1393.62 0.00 57.33 118.95 14.15 0.00 0.00 1584.05 |
(127413)  (179) 259 (seeay (2236 (-) (189.07) (1,585.46)
Segment Result 1060.08 0.00 4444 19.17 14.15 0.00 0.00  1137.85
_ 97378)  (1.79) B8 sem  (2236) () (18007) (1,242.26)
Unallocated
Corporate Expenses -1357.48
net of Income - - - - - - -
: (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) -1524.64
.Operating Profit -219.63
() () () () () () () -28239
Interest Income 219.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 219.43
(208.05) (-] (") (’) (-) (’) (') (208.05)
Net Profit before Tax -0.20
Tax Expenses , 0.00
(-) (-) (-) (-] (-] ) (-) (1.23)
Net Profit after Tax . -0.20
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) ) 7311
Segment Assets 5595.32 0.00 19.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5615.04
(3,461.25) (-] (2159) (-) () (-) (-) (3482.80)
Unallocated Assets 4080.14 4080.14
(5,336.66) (-) (-) (-) () (5,336.66)
“*“Total Assets 9675.46 0.00 19.72 0.00 0.00 9695.18
(8,797.91) (-)  (2155) (-] (-) (8:819.46)




. Merchant . Mutual Insurance . .
Particulars Brokerage Banking Depository g1 is income PMS  Windmill Total
Segment Liabilities 2562.70 0.00 0.68 000 000 0.00 0.00  2563.38
(1,715.81) (-) (0.64) (- (-) (-) (-) (1,716.44)
Unallocated '
Liabilities 7131.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  7131.80
(7,103.02) (-) (-] () (- () (-) (7103.02)
Total Liabilities 9694.50 0.00 = 0.8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9695.18
(8,818.83) (-) (0.64) (-) (-] (-) (-) (g819.6)
Capital Expenditure 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ~ 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) ()|
Depreciation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 . 0.00 0.00 14.12
(- (- (-) (-) () (- ) o4z)
Non-cash expenses
other than
Depreciation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

IX. Employee Benefits
{(a) Provisions for employee benefits under revised AS 15:
Defined Contribution plan: Provident and other statutory funds. The amount recognized as an

expense during the year is Rs. 67,38,272/-(Previous Year — Rs. 56,10,744).

(b) Defined Benefit plan: Compensated Absence-Leave Salary .
The policy provides for that an employee is entitled to 24 days of earned leave per year and
maximum of 15 days leave standing to the credit of the employee at the end of the calendar
year will be paid as leéve salary calculated on the Gross pay along with December / January

month salary.

{c) The Company has constituted The Employees Group Gratuity Fund under the Group Gratuity
Assurance Scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The scheme
provides for Lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment

or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each

, o\ -
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The following table sets out the Gratuity plan as provided by LIC.

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Year 2016-17
Policy No ' : : 605000538
Date of Valuation 31/03/2017
Membership Date
Number of Members 159
Average age ) 38.05
Average Monthly Salary ‘ 18366.83
Average past Service 5.48
Valuation Method Projected unit credit

method

Results of Valuation
Present value of Past Service Benefit 69,15,862
Service cost 10,58,410
Fund with lic : 80,35,572
Accrued Gratuity 1,03,91,696
Actuarial Assumptions )
Mortality Rate LIC (2006-08) ultimate
Discount rate . 8% p.a.’
Salary escalation rate 5%
Withdrawal rate : 1% to 3% depending on age
Total Amount Payable Nil

Related Party Disclosure as per AS 18:

(a) Holding Company : IRCI Limited

(b) Subsidiary Companies : a) IFIN Commodities Limited
b) IFIN Credit Limited
c) IFIN Securities Finance Limited (Formerly
known as Narayan Sriram Investments Private
Limited)

{c) Fellow Subsidiaries : “a) IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited
b} IFCI Factors Limited
¢} IFC! Infrastructure Development Limited
d) Stock Holding Corporation of India Ltd
e) MPCON

(d) Key Management Personnel and relatives of such personnel:

Mrs. S. Usha :  Managing Director (Since 21.04.2014)

AJ
S ss




(e) Transaction with Related Parties:
Holding /Subsidiary/ Fell Key Managerial Key By
- Particulars oS ll:‘gc{ ’ SIC lal'ya iesow :ersonrfel Managerial
No.‘ ubsidiary Companie ) Personnel -
2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16
1 | Rent Paid to IFCI Ltd. 1,33,73,222 1,39,05,703 - -
Rent received from IFIN ’
: 7,82,956 - : -
2 | Commodities Ltd., 26,27,949 27,82,956
3 Etr;kerage Received from IFCI 44,58,980 23,45,056 } _ .
Brokerage Received from IFC } B
4 Employee Stock Option Trust 18,029 :
Brokerage Received from IFCl
: ,03,288 - -
> Venture Capital Fund Ltd. 4,99,670 3
6 Brokerage received from IFCI 7,170 1,06,509
Factors Ltd “
7 Portfolio Management Services o _ . .
fees received
8 | Depository Services 9,70,984 9,48,817 - -
Reimbursement of Expenses to ;‘ : B _
9 IFCI Limited. 1,31,975 1,55,584
Reimbursement of Exp
10 | received from IFIN - - - -
Commodities Limited
11 | Managerial Remuneration - - 32,98,104 43,40,692
1 Consultancy Fee received from ) _ _ .
| IFIN Commodities Limited
13 loan Availed from IFIN ) _ } .
Securities Finance Limited
14 | Loan Repaid - - - -
Corporate Guarantee Issued to _ _
15 IFIN Commodities ltd 5,00,00,000 5/00,00,000 :
16 | Interest Paid - - - -
Equity contribution made in
,01,00,000 - -
17 IFIN Securities Finance Limited 30,01,00,000 30
Equity contribution made in
5,00,00,000 - -
18 IFIN Commodity Limited 5,00,00,000 0
| Reimbursement of Expenses _ .
19 | from IFIN Securities Finance 1,25,00,000 1,00,00,000 - - -
Limited :
Amount Due to IFIN Securities
20 | .. - - - - -
Finance Limited
. : . i =
Reimbursement of Expenses Boada i
il 7 0 =
21| from IFIN Credit Limited 1 /9’500 N 14:40,00




22

Amount Due from IFIN Credit

19,95, 11,63,600 ] )
Limited 9,95,950 1,63,60

23

Insurance of IFIN Commodities
Limited paid by IFCI Financial - - - -
Services Limited : ]

24

Payable by IFIN Commodities

Limited {66,546) 5,31,502 - -

XL

XiL.

X1l

XIv.

XV.

Foreign Exchange Inflow and OQutflow

During the year, the company has spent a sum of Rs.NIL. (Previous year-NlL) in forelgn exchange,

towards travelling and conveyance.

Balances of Sundry Debtors confirmed on a regular basis from the respectlve parties. In the
opinion of the management, the balances are considered as good and recoverable except debtors
for an amount of Rs. 13,26,15,449/-.(previous year Rs. 13,87,59,020) which includes provision of
Rs.1,19, 83 +430/- towards Depository Services provided to M/s IFCI Limited.

The Company had initiated the process of identifying the vendors under Micro, Small & Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The Company is yet to receive intimation from the vendors
stating their status under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. In view of
this, the company has not made any provision and disclosure required by this Act.

Figures of the previous year have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to make them
comparable with the current year figures.

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee. Figures in bracket represent previous year’s

figures.
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H.O. : TRADE CENTRE, Il FLOOR,

PONRAJ & Co. . 108, WALLAJAH ROAD,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHENNAI-600 002.
' Phone :044-28549953
Fax  :044-28528443
Cell  :94440 49953

E-mail : ponrajca@gmail.com
. - Website : www.ponrajandco.com
Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of IFCI Financial Services Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/s. IFCI Financial
Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its Subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), comprising of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
 the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the Consolidated
Financial Statements"). "

Managem_ent‘s reéponsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as "the Act) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Sectioh. 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which- have been used for the purpose of
. preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid. '

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements. based on
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing

We conducted our aidit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing  specified under
Section 143(10) of- the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidateqigyngncial
Statements are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. > $0

%\
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PONRAJ & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS . : ' )
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amaunts and the.
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on fhe =
auditor's  judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of “the e
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk . . _
. assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company's ", . - .
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design’
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting : imates... ...
made by the Holding Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall. prese! tation.of ... . -
- the Consolidated Financial Statements, e

We believe that the audit-evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a .basié for. .
our audit opinion on the Consolid_ated Financial Statements. ST

Opinion : _ Ce e

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given:to us; - - -.-
_the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by. the ‘Act in-the. .
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles -
generally accepted in India o :

) i the case of Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the Consolidated state of- affairs of the' - -
Group, as at March 31, 2017; , DA

(ii) in the case of Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Consolidated PROFIT
for the year then ended on that date; : -

(i) in the case of Consolidated Cash Flow Statemenl, of the Consolidated Cash Flows for the
yearended on that date. o

Other matters A o _
(@) The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Financial Statements of 3 Subsidiarles ~ ©
whose Financial Statements reflect the total assets of Rs. 55,31 crore as at 316t Maich, 2017, total "~
.revenue of Rs. 8.79 crore, net cash flows amounting to Rs. 4.89 crore and net profit before tax
amounting to Rs.2.95 crore for the year ended on that date which has not been audited by us. These
Financial Statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been fumnishedtousby
the Management and in our opinion the Consolidated Financial Statements, in sofarasitrelatesto =~
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, are based solely on the reports .
of the other auditors. : " o

Report on other legal and régulatéry requirements
1. Asrequired by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that; R

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best.of .-
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; - -

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept by the Company sofarasit ™
appears from our examination of those books and the report of otherauditors. <

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of-Profit and Loss, and
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with-the -~ -
relevant books of account maintained for the jeated

Financial Statements.
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PONRAJ & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS o - - o
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Fin'ancia! Statements comply with the.
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of-the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. , I SR

e) On the basis of written representation received from ‘the Directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March 2017, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, none of the .
Directors of the Group companies, is disqualified as:on' 31 March, 2017, from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
and thé operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our Report in “Annexure A”,
which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding Company, Subsidiaries. Our report

- expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
- Holding Company’s, subsidiaries’ Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
rule 11 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us: -

i) The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
Consolidated Financial position of the Group. - Refer Notes to Account B (ll)

il) The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for
which there are any material foreseeable losses. ‘

i) The Comp'any is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund. ' '

2. As per directions issued by the C & AG of India under section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013,
we report that: ‘ :
i As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company do not hold any
. freehold or lease hold land as on the Balance Sheet date.
ii.  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of audit
- carried out by us, we note that there are no cases of waiver / write off of debts during
the year. ‘
iii. ~ The Group does not hold inventory and have not received any assets as gifts / grants
from the Government or other authorities. Hence, reporting under this sub-direction
does not arise. - : .

. For PONRAJ & CO

Place: Chennai ' " Chartgred Accountants

Dated: 05.05.17 B : FRN/002672S




- PONRA]J & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS -

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report-
(Referred to in our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-sectlon 3 of
-Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”y

We have audited the internal financial controls over. ﬁnancxal reportlng of M/s. IFCI.
Financial Services Limited (“the Company”) and its-subsidiaries together referred as:
the group as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Finéhcial Con-trols

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘'ICAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

- ,.......ww....;.A».L.M..V..... e e e

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance -
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing (the ‘Standards’) issued - L
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies ‘Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit.of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. ‘

- Our audit involyes performing procedures to obtain audit evxdence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reportmg and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over fihancial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
‘assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and .evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material mlsstatement of the Financial Statements ‘whether due to fraud or

error. S : o
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'PONRAJ & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting, -

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of A L
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and. ;
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in- !
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and - S
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of :
management and ‘directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of ‘internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial
Controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the

ICAL :

- A For PONRAJ& CO
Place: Chennai ) Chartered Accountants
Dated: 05.05.17 o




IFCI Financial Services Limited )
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2017

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars Note No.| Asat 31st March 2017 | As at 31st March 2016
. |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Shareholders’ funds .
(a) Share capital 2 415,337,090 415,337,090
(b) Reserves and surplus 3 308,389,075 284,813,452
2 |Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings - 10,000,000
(a) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2,659,146 2,823,688
(b) Other Long term liabilities 4 6,626,724 6,689,988
(¢} Long-term provisions - -
3 [Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 71,500,000 93,500,000
(b) Trade payables 282,227,814 172,407,806
{c) Other current liabilities 5 32,267,124 40,962,620
(d) ~ Short-term provisions 6 15,315,953 5,762,236
TOTAL 1,134,322,925 1,032,296,880
Il. |ASSETS
.1 |Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 7
(i) Tangible assets 3,257,816 4,475,589
(i)  Intangible assets 2,109,280 2,377,279
(iii} Goodwill 2,253,857 2,253,857
(b) Non-current investments 8 - -
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) - -
(d) Long-term loans and advances 9 309,977,070 215,882,582
(e) Other non-current assets - -
2 |current assets
(a) Current investments 10 11,461,957 6,786,647
(b} Trade receivables 11 75,056,981 105,041,168
{c}) Cash and cash equivalents 12 384,108,833 337,053,696
(d) Short-term loans and advances 13 334,133,296 328,408,061
(e) Other current assets 14 11,963,834 30,018,001
TOTAL 1,134,322,925 1,032,296,880
For PONRAJ & CO., FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF

" Chartfjed Accountants
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IFCI Financial Services Limited .
Consolidated Profit and loss statement for the period ended 31st March 2017

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars Note | For the Yearended | For the Year ended
No. 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

| IRevenue from operations 15 214,347,623 211,695,937

Il |Other Operating Income 16 12,913,861 13,309,293

Il |Other Income 17 26,487,385 146,362,242

IV |Total Revenue (I + 11 + H1) 253,748,869 271,367,471
V |Expenses:

Employee benefits expense 18 110,226,868 98,077,827

Finance costs 19 16,095,046 27,464,428

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,595,227~ 2,220,722

Reimburesement of expenses - -

Other expenses 20 108,744,466 100,723,160

Bad Debts Written off - 116,058,850

Total expenses (V) 236,661,607 344,544,987

VI |Profit before bad & doubtful debts and tax (v-v) 17,087,262 {73,177,515)
VIl |Provision for bad & Doubtful debts 21 {11,378,455) (36,318,516)

Prior period Income (1,190,278) 1,211,332

Prior period expenses 140,450
VIt |Profit before extraordinary items and tax (Vi - V1) 29,515,545 (38,070,331)

IX Extraordinary Items - -
X [Profit before tax (VIHI-IX) 29,515,545 (38,070,331)
Xl |Tax expense: - -

- Current Tax / Deferred Tax 6,525,000 685,728

- Reversal of IT provision for Earlier Year {420,536)

- Deferred Tax Reversal (Net) (164,542) (99,365)
Xll_|Profit (Loss) after tax (X-X1) 23,575,623 (38,656,694)
XIIl' | Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations - : -
XIV [Tax expense of discontinuing operations - - -
XV Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations {after tax) (XHI - XIv) - -
XVvi |Profit (Loss) for the period (XIi + XV) 23,575,623 (38,656,694)

XVl |Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic 0.57 {0.93)
(2) Diluted 0.57 {0.93)

For PONRAJ & CO., -

Charter dAccounténEOi‘ PONRAJ &' CO., ~

Chartered Accountants .

FRN - 5026725

Partner, M.No 15274
Partner

Place : Chennai
Date: 05/05/2017

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

S. Usha
Managing Director

Aby Eapen
Company Secretary
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Biswajit Banerjee

Director

V Pushparaj
Chief Financial Officer




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS ON 31ST MARCH 2017 .
: ) {Amount in Rs)
Particulars : Year ended Year ended
31.03.2017 31.03,2016
A {CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Net Profit befor tax 29,515,545 (38,070,331)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation / Amortisation on Fixed Assets 1,595,227 2,220,722
Prior.perid expenses - 1,211,332
“|Provision for doubtful debts - (42,568,988)
Dimution in Value of Stock - 6,491,280
Dividend Received (considered seperately under
Investment Activities) - (169,634}
Finance Cost {considered seperately under Finance
Activities) - 2,314,779
Interest income {26,487,385) (26,925,079}
Interest expenses " 16,095,046 :
Profit/ (Loss) on Fixed Asset ' (8,797,112){  (18,682,315)| (76,107,903)
Operation Profit before Working Capital Changes 20,718,433 (114,178,234)
Adjustments for:
(Increase) / Decrease in Current Investments {4,675,309) 6,578,927
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 29,584,187 3,063,824
(Increase) / Decrease in Short term Loans & Advances {5,725,236) 135,905,198 .
(Increase) / Decrease in Long term Loans & Advances : 25,500,000
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advances (94,094,489)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current Assets 18,054,167 (10,224,854)
Increase / {Decrease) in Trade Payable 109,820,008 1,244,853
Increase / (Decrease) In Provisions 9,553,717 (10,087,928)
ncrease / {Decrease} in Non - Current Liabilities {8,695,496) 138,762,647
Increase / (Decrease) in Other liabilities (22,000,000} 2,040,543
increase / {Decrease) in Short term Borrowings {209,500,000)
) 32,221,550 83,283,210
Cash Generated from Operation before tax 52,939,983 {30,895,024)
Direct taxes paid {6,525,000) 685,728
Reversal of Tax Provisions 420,536 -
Nét cash from Operating Activities 46,835,519 (31,580,752}
B |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets - (5,965,863}
(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Assets (109,456)
{increase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposits {91,749,888) (20,084,314),
Dividend Received - . 4,677,344 -
Interest received 26,487,385 22,417,370
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (10,000,000) -
Repayment of Long Term Liabilities {63,264) -
Sale of Fixed Assets - 31,394,458
Net Cash used in / raised from Investing Activities (75,435,223) 32,438,995
C |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Paid , {16,095,046) -
Finance Cost - (2,314,779)
Repayment of Loans - -

' {16,095,046) (2,314,779)
Net Changes In Cash & Cash Equlvalent {a+b+c) {44,694,751) {1,456,536}
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalent 160,631,251 91,264,204
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent -{ 115,936,501 89,807,668
Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent {44,694,751) {1,456,536)
The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "indirect method” set out in Accouning Standard-3 on Cash Flow
Satement issued as per Company's Accounitng Standard Rules,2006. '

This is theﬁg‘lﬂ?’ @mﬁg r&ar@fyygn datg
i Chartered Accountants.. :
For PQ, & CO., FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
. IFCl FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
N . 3
. st g N\ ]
tvengr S. Usha Biswajit Banerjee
wer, w1.No 15274 " Managing Director Chairman
/&j Ga)
Place : Chennai Aby Eapen A V Pushparaj

AL pme -

Date : N5/05/2017 ) ,--,.‘...._....-____L___ Qcyﬁ




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED { CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

Note no. 2 Share Capital i ( Amount In Rs. )
I E . - As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
. Particulars
Number Rs. Number Rs.
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each ’ 50,000,000 500,000,000 | 5,00,00,000 50,00,00,000
Issued .
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each ) 41,533,709 415,337,090 41,533,709 415,337,090
Subscribed & Paid up
J .Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 41,533,709 415,337,090 41,533,709 415,337,090
| Subscribed but not fully Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, not fully paid up - - - -
Total 41,533,709 415,337,090 41,533,709 415,337,090

Disclosure pursuant to Note no. 6{(A)(d) of Part | of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956
(Following disclosure should be made for each class of Shares)

. As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Particulars
Number Rs. Number Rs.- .
1 Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 41,533,709 415,337,090 { 41,533,709 415,337,090

" Shares Issued during the year - N i .
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year « 41,533,709 | 415,337,090 [ 41,533,709 415,337,090
3,93,63,809 Equity Shares (Previous year 3,93,63,809 equity shares) are held by IFCI Limited,
the holding company and its nominees.

As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Name of Shareholder . No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
held held
IFCl Limited and nominees 39,363,809 94.78 39,363,809 94,78
Ms. Chandra Ramesh 1,757,619 4.23 1,757,619 4.23
Mr. D V Ramesh 412,281 0.99 412,281 0.99

On 01st November 2011, 3,24,60,622 equity shares of Rs.10/- each were allotted to IFCI Ltd for
consideration other than cash on preferential basis by convertion of debt of Rs.76.25 Crore into equity

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity share, i.e. equxty share,shavmg face value of
Rs.10/- per share entitled to one vote per share. )

By o




" IFCI FINANCIAL SER_VICES LIMITED
Note No. 3 Reserves and Surplus

( CONSbLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars

As at 31st March
2017

As at 31st March
2016

a. Capital Reserves

Opening Balance

{+) Current Year Transfer

(-) Written Back in Current Year
1Closing Balance

b. Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance

(+) Current Year Transfer

{-) Written Back in Current Yea
Closing Balance '

¢. Statutory Reserve
Opening Balance

Add: Amount transferred from surplus in the
Statement of Profit and Loss

A. Securities Premium Account
Cpening Balance

Add : Securities premium credited on Share issue
Less : Premium Utilised for various reasons
Premium on Redemption of Debentures
For Issuing Bonus Shares

Closing Balance

B, Other Reserves (Specifiy the nature and purpose of
each reserve)

i)JAmalgamation Reserve:
Opening Balance

(+) Current Year Transfer

(-) Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance

ii) General Reserve;
Opening Balance

{+) Current Year Transfer

{-) Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance

C. Surplus:

Opening balance

{+) Net Profit/(Net Loss} For the current year
(-) Adjustment for Fixed Asset
(+) Transfer from Reserves

{-) Transfer to Reserves

Closing Balance

451,643,790
5,135,000

451,643,790

456,778,790

451,643,790

1,745,305

1,745,305

1,745,305

1,745,305

9,501,851

. 9,501,851

9,501,851

9,501,851

(178,077,494)
23,575,623

5,135,000

(138,560,826)
(38,656,694)
859,974

(159,636,871)

(178,077,494)

Total

308,389,075

284,813,452

Note No. 4 Other Long Term Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31st March
2017

As at 31st March
2016

v oroeee

6,689,988

(a)Security Deposit and Sundry deposits
Total

15

; &
/ 6,626,724"

6,689,988

£X/ &
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FCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED ( CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

Note No. 5 Other Current Liabilities

STATEMENT )

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March 2016
-2017

Other payables
Creditors for expenses 4,212,531 3,473,254
Statutory dues 15,047,863 21,644,704
Other liabilities 7,703,241 7,928,477
Interest accrued & but not due - 309,863
Income received in advance - 1,471,439
Sundry Deposits 229,086 389,999
Payable to Exchanges 5,074,404 5,744,884

Total 32,267,124 40,962,620
Note No. 6 Short Term Provisions

Particulars As at 31st March . As at 31st March

) Rs. Rs.
(a) Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 206,949 217,684 |
Leave Encashment 6,542,320 1,960,120
Bonus 977,523 2,342,517
Provision for Income tax 6,137,171 -
Provision for Standard Assets 1,451,990 1,241,915

Total 15,315,953 | . ...~y 5,762,236

L STIRY
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED { CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT )
Note 9 Long Term Loans and Advances

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31st March
2017 2016
a. Capital Advances
Secured, considered good - 168,101,865
" [Unsecured, considered good - 11,850,000
Doubtful - -
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - : -
- 179,951,865
b. Security Deposits
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good * 143,513,930 350,000
‘Doubtful - 30,963,430
143,513,930 31,313,430
¢. Other Loans and advances
Secured, considered good 157,563,634 -
Unsecured, considered good - -
Doubtful - -
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances - -
157,563,634 -
d. Other loans and advances (specify nature)
Other Loans & Advances 8,899,506 4,617,286
Advance Tax (net of provisions) - -
8,899,506 4,617,286
Total 309,977,070 215,882,581

166




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED ( CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note 10 Current Investments

(Amount in Rs)

As at 31st March | As at 31st March
Particulars 2017 2016
Rs. Rs.
(a) Investment in Equity instruments 29,583,896 30,425,152
(b) Investments in preference shares - ‘ -
(c) Investments in Government or Trust securities - -
(d) Investments in Debentures or Bonds - -
{e) Investments in Mutual Funds - -
(f) Investments in partnership firms* - -
(g) Other non-current investments (specify nature) - -
Total (A} 29,583,896 30,425,152
Less : Provision for dimunition in the value of Investments 18,121,939 23,638,503
Total 11,461,957 6,786,648
As at 31st March | As at 31st March
Particulars 2017 2016
Rs. Rs.
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 15,914,685 11,412,073
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - -
Note 11 Trade receivable
Particulars As at 31st March | Asat 31st March
2017 2016
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six ) )
months from the date they are due for payment
Secured, considered good 71,689,973 57,518,238
Unsecured, considered good 353 45,112,124
Unsecured, considered doubtful 896,432 108,294
72,586,758 102,738,656
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 896,432 108,294
71,690,326 102,630,362
Trade receivables outsianding for a period exceeding six
months from the date they are due for payment - -
Secured, considered good 3,366,654 1,912,259
Unsecured, considered good - 498,546
Unsecured, considered doubtful 134,514,236 141,414,602
137,880,890 143,825,407
Less: Provision for doubtful debts* 134,514,236 141,414,602
* Includes Rs. 1,25,66,906 receivables from JFCl.Limited 1"~ 3,366,655 2,410,805
Total = 337\ . 75,056,981 105,041,168
e lo6




IFCH FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED ( CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

" Note 12 Cash and cash equivalents

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
a. Balances with banks
In Current Accounts with Banks - 96,907,634 - 70,792,512
Fixed Deposit - 268,172,333 - 176,422,445
- 19,000,000 89,823,583
{Bank deposits with less than 12 months maturity) -
b. Cheques, drafts on hand - - - -
¢. Cash on hand - 28,867 - 15,156
d. Others {specify nature) - - - -
Total 384,108,833 - 337,053,696
" Note 13 Short term loans and advances
Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
a. Loans and advances to related parties
Secured, considered good - - - -
Unsecured, considered good - - - -
Doubtful - - - -
Less:Provision for doubtful loans and advances - - - -
b. Others .
|Other Loans and Advances - 36,778,342 29,954,195 -
Advance Tax {net of provisions) - 35,747,116 35,436,195 -
Sundry Deposits - - 3,628,068 -
Prepaid Expenses - 3,302,338 8,489,829 -
Secured, considered good - 258,278,383 247,207,907 -
Taxes deducted at source - - - -
Unsecured, considered good - - - -
Balance with govt authorities - 27,118 3,691,867 -
334,133,296 328,408,061
- 334,133,296 - 328,408,061
Total - 334,133,296 - 328,408,061
Note 14 Other current assets
. As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
Particulars
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Interest accrued on Deposits 11,963,834 - 27,935,886 -
Total 7 a963,834 - 27,935,886 -

Joy

oA\




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED ( CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

Note 15 Revenue from Operations

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016
Brokerage On Stock Broking 122,401,496 119,426,938
Commission On Mutual Fund 5,550,528 2,132,670
Insurance Commission 97,622 72,289
Loan Syndication Fee 1,405,435 179,277
Fees for Merchant Banking - 400,000
Depository Income 5,732,829 4,258,613
Commision From IPO / Bonds . 4,938,841 3,020,279
Commision On Fixed deposits 1,317,378 3,766,857
Account Opening Charges 233,700 63,000
Processing fees 2,517,500 2,466,600
Dividend income 184,289 214,893
Interest Receipt from Loans 69,968,006 75,685,272
Total 214,347,623 211,686,688
Note 16 Other Operating Income
Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016
Sale of Power / Electricity - 356,990
Delayed Payment Interest 12,913,861 12,952,303
Total 12,913,861 13,309,293
Note 17 Other Income
Particulars [ For the Year ended | For the Year ended
31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016
Rental Income - -
Miscellaneous Income 402,828 529,505
Profit on sale of Asset - 18,682,315
Interest Income 25,579,937 25,263,531
Pre Closure Income - 739,063
Penalty interest - 892,011
Profit on Sale of Investments 504,620 265,066
Total 26,487,385 46,371,491 |.

! O g},




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED ( CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

Note 18 Empoyee Benefits expense

{Amount in Rs)

Pé‘ rticulars For the Year ended|For the Year ended
| 31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016
(a) Salaries and incentives 99,894,429 89,039,534
{b} Contributions to -

Provident fund & Employee State Insurance 6,056,052 6,213,810
Gratuity fund contributions 1,407,265 203,724
{c) Staff welfare expenses 2,869,122 2,620,759
: Total 110,226,868 98,077,827

Note 19 Finance Costs

For the Year For the Year
Particulars ended 31st March | ended 31st March
2017 2016

Interest expenses 13,083,912 25,220,217
Bank Financial Charges 3,011,135 2,244,211
Total ... .16,095,046 27,464,428




IFCl FINAN(';IAL SERVICES LIMITED ( CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT )

Note: 20 Other Expenses

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars For the Year ended |For the Year ended
31st March 2017 | 3ist March 2016
Fees To Clearing Member 1,565,918 1,444,489
Information Technology Exp 1,430,248 721,858
Data Feed Charges 2,078,323 1,282,617
Depository Participant Expenses 1,288,376 306,293
Broking Stamp Expenses 26,400 18,560
Professional & Consultancy Charges 26,037,599 24,778,640
Transaction Charges 1,836,464 1,151,094
Advertisement 141,386 410,134 |-
Audit Fees 1,063,500 1,362,500
Electricity Charges 4,309,357 4,058,594
Insurance Expenses 1,500,070 1,071,443
Commission Paid 12,644,302 | 7,351,978
Postage & Telegram 1,104,964 1,297,524
Printing & Stationery 1,361,721 1,604,390
JRent © 23,385,477 27,378,838
Rates & Taxes 212,515 1,675,938
Repairs & Maintenance 1,114,977 1,648,044
Sitting Fees 621,525 485,000
Membership Fee And Subscription 7,059,310 5,769,354
Telephone Expenses 4,440,820 6,236,175
I Training Expenses 107,433 170,524
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 2,136,848 2,103,713
(Office Maintenance 5,584,575 4,055,373
Business Development Expenses 138,344 211,680
Court fee - Suit filing 2,082,115 -
Service tax Expenses 2,519,550 -
Other Administrative Expenses 2,952,350 4,128,356
TOTAL 108,744,466 100,723,157
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note: 21 Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts
Particulars For the Year ende_d For the Year-ended
31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016
Diminution in the value of shares (Net) (5,476,303) 6,491,280
Provision for Standard Assets 210,076 -
Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances (6,112,228) (42,568,988)
TOTAL . {11,378,455) (36,077,708)
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IFCI Financial Services Limited (Consolidated)
Note No.1 ‘

A. Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Accounts for the year ended March,

312017

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared under the
historical cost cdhvention, on the accrual basis of accounting and comply in all
material respects with the accounting standards issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India / accounting standards notified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent applicable) and in accordance with the
generally accepted accounting principles and the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the
generally accepted accounting principles requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabil_ities,
revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The
estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements are based upon management's evaluation of the relevant facts and
circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ
from the estimates and assumptions used in preparing the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Any differences of actual results to such
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known ./

materialized.




Principles and assumptions used for consolidated financial statements and pro-forma

adjustments'

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared applying the

principles laid in the Accounting Standard (AS) 21 Consolidated Financial -

Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as

considered appropriate for the purposes of these Consolidated Balance Sheet,

and Profit and Loss Account, together referred to in as 'Consolidated Financial

Statements'. Following are the companies whose accounts have been considered

for the consolidated financial statements.

IFCI Financial Services Ltd’s (the 'parent company or the holding company)

shareholding in the following companies as on 31% March 2017 and 31% March

2016 are as under:

As on 31st March

As on 31st March
Name of the Cou?try 2017 v 2016
. Date on which became No of No of
Subsidiary . 1 % of % of
a Subsidiary shares holdin shares holdin
. held 8| held &
c —
:_?dN ommodities India | 30.02.2009 |50,00,000 | 100 |50,00,000| 100
IFIN Credit Ltd. India 01.02.2010 | 25,00,000 100 25,00,000 100
IFIN Securities :
Finance Ltd.
(Formerly knownas | . | 02.03.2011 |30,01,000 | 100 |30,01,000| 100
Narayan Sriram
Investments Private
Ltd)

|10,




.

Principles used in preparing Consolidated Financial statements:
a)ln prebaring consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of the
parent and its subsidiaries is combined on a line by line basis by adding together

like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

b) Intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparation of consolidated

financial statements

c) The cost to the parent of its investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s
portion of equity of each subsidiary, at the date on which investment in each |
subsidiary is made, is eliminated.

(i) In the case of IFIN Commodity Ltd., since the amount paid is equal to the paid

up capital of the subsidiary, there is neither goodwill nor a capital reserve.

(i) In the case of IFIN Credit Ltd., IFCI Financial Services Ltd. had acquired the
100% of the share capital in two stages i.e. initially 45% in the accounting year
2008-09 and the balance in 2009-10. The total amount paid is Rs.2,79, 00,000 for
a net asset value of Rs. 1, 98, 81,335/- as on 01.02.2010 i.e., the date on which
the Company became a subsidiary (Wholly owned). The surplus of Rs.80,
18,665/- is adjusted agamst the Amalgamatlon Reserve of Rs.97, 63,970/-

H3




(i) In the case of IFIN Securities Finance Ltd (Formerly known as Narayan Sriram
lnve‘stmen’ts Private Ltd.), IFCI Financial Services Ltd. had acquired the 100% of
the share capital for a consideration of Rs. 73,23,063 for a total equity of
Rs.1,00,000/- as on 02.03.2011 i.e., the date on which the Company became a
subsidiary (Wholly owned). The total reserves and surplus as on date of -
acquisition of Rs.50, 69,206/- and the balance amount of Rs. 22, 53,857 is shown

as goodwill.

V. Revenue Recognition:
Broking Income
Brokerage Income is recognized on the trade date of the transaction upon
confirmation of the transactions by the exchanges.
Interest Income from Fixed Deposits
Interest earned on fixed income bearing securities is accounted on a time
proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.
Loan Syndication Fees
Loan Syndication Fees are recognised when the right to receive the income is
established.
Income from Dep»ository Segment

Depository Services incomes are recognised on the basis of agreements entered

into with clients and whenfth?\;g]itteareceive the income is established.
. o\
Q
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Insurance Income

Insurance Commission from Agency business is booked upon actual receipt of
commission from the principal.

Commission from selling of Mutual Fund

Commission from selling of mutual funds is accounted on accrual basis.

Interest Income from Loans disbursed

Interest earned on Loan is accounted on accrual basis. In terms of the RBI

Directions, interest income on Non-performing assets ("NPAs") is recognised only

when it is actually realized.

Processing Fee:

Processing Fee received in respect of loans is accounted for in the year in which

the loan is disbursed

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment

is established.

Equity Index/Stock — derivatives

Equity Index/Stock/Commodity Futures are marked to market on daily basis.

Debit or Credit Balances disclosed under Current Assets or Current liabilities

respectively represent the net amount paid or received on the basis of -

movement of priceé in the Index Stock Futures till the Balance sheet date. '
(a) As at the Balance sheet date, the profit or loss on open positions are

accounted for as follows:

The unrealized profit determined scrip wise/Index wise, being anticipated

profit, is ignored and no credit {th(go in the profit and loss account.
) W N\




The unrealized loss determined scrip wise/Index wise, being anticipated loss,

is recoghized in the profit and loss account.

(b) On final settlement or squaring-up of contracts, the profit or loss is

calculated as difference between  settlement/squaring-up  price and

contract price. Accordingly, debit or credit balance pertaining to the .
settled/squared-up contract is recognized as profit or loss upon
expiry/squaring-up of the contracts. When more than one contract '

in respect of the relevant series of Equity IndeX/Stock / Commodity Futures |
contract to which the squared-up contract pertainsis  outstanding at the
time of the squaring-up of the contract, the contract price of the contract so
squared-up is determined using weighted average method for

calculating profit/loss on squaring up.

(c) Initial and additional margin paid over and above initial margin, for entering
into contracts which are released on final settlement/squaring-up of

underlying contracts, are disclosed under Current Assets.

income from sale of electricity
Units generated from windmills are sold to the Tamil Nadu Electricity Board
(TNEB) at agreed rates and the income is included in the value of power

generated from windmills.

gy,




V1. Stock-in-trade:

" stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost and quoted value, computed category
wise. Cost is ascertained on FIFO basis. Provision is made for diminution arising
there from.

Vil. Investments:
= The Company acquires holds and deals in shares in its own account also. The
investments intended to be held for one year or more were classified as long-
term investments and provision for diminution in the value of long term '
investments being made only if such a decline is other than temporary.
» Current investments are considered as stock in trade and are valued at lower

of cost or net realizable value.
Vill. Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.

Intangible Assets:
Intangible assets are recognized if they are separately identifiable and the
Company controls the future economic benefits arising out of them. All other

expenses on intangible items are charged to the profit and loss account.

The computer software is identified as Intangible assets and has been amortized
at the rate 40% following WDV method.The consideration paid as non-compete
feesis identified as an Intangible Asset and has been amortised as per the terms -
of the agreement on straight line basis.

Depreciation on the fixed assets is provided on the written down value method in




iX. Impairment of Assets:
An asset is fmpaired when the carrying‘ amount of the "asset exceé‘ds its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss
Account in the period/year in which the said asset is identified as impaired. An
impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has

been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount..
X. Employee Benefits:

Employee benefits comprise both Defined contribution plan and Defined benefit '
plans. All short term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis

during the accounting period based on services rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plan -

»- The Company’s Provident Fund Scheme and Employee State insurance
scheme are defined contribution plan and company’s contribution
paid/payable is recognized as expense in Profit & Loss account during the

period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plan -Gratuity

» The Company’s liability towards Gratuity is a Déﬁned Benefit Plan. The liability
towards Gratuity is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of Employee
benefit entitlement. The gratuity Scheme is operated through Group gratuity

Scheme of LIC. The gratuity liabilities are provided based on Actuarial

Loss Account.
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» Compensated Absence-Leave Salary
The policy provides for that an employee is entitled to 24 days of earned leave
per year and maximum of 15 days leave standing to the credit of the
employee at the end of the calendar year will be paid as leave salary .
calculated on the Gross pay along with January month salary of the
immediate next calendar year. The expenses on account thus arising are
recognized in the profit and loss account.

Borrowing Cost:

Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are

capitalized.  Other Interest and borrowing costs are charged to revenue.
Taxation:
Income Tax expense comprises current tax as determined in accordance with the
income tax laws and deferred tax charge or credit reflecting the tax effect of the .
timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the year.
The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liability /
assets are recognhized applying the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty that such assets can

be realized in future.

B. Notes forming part of the Accounts

Nature of Business:

The Parent Company is a SEBI registered Stock Broker on National Stock Exchange

' of India Ltd (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) is primarily engaged in the

business of providing securities mav\ggtgecl

ted transaction services.
S




The subsidiary company IFIN Commodity Limited is a registered member of Multi
Commodity Exchange Limited and its primarily .engaged in the business of

providing Commodity Market related transaction services.

The subsidiary company IFIN Securities Finance Limited is a Non Banking Finance
4Company, registered u/s 45-lA of Reserve Bank of India Act, Is primarily engaged
in-the business of margin funding, providing loan against shares & property,

Promoter funding, etc.

The subsidiary company IFIN Credit Limited is engaged primarily in the business of '

extending credit facilities to customers and in investing activities.

The Board 6f Directors of IFIN, ICOM and IFIN Credit at their meeting held on July
24, 2015 had approved merger of IFIN Commodities (IcoM) and IFIN Credit
Limited. M/s. Bail Associates, Chartered Accountants and M/s. S
Ramasubramaniam & Associates, Advocates were engaged as consultants for
completion of process of merger and for appearing at Hon’ble Madras High Court.
As regards the status of merger of IFIN Credit Ltd and IFIN Commodities Ltd., on
March 7, 2016, the Ld. Official Liquidator appeared and submitted that Report was

under preparation and requested that further time of 3 weeks be granted to

finalize and file the same. The Hon’ble Court had adjourned the matter by 3 ‘

weeks and the next date of hearing was fixed on 28.3.2016. On March 28, 2016

the Official Liquidator had requested for further time and the Hon’ble Court had

adjourned the matter.
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Il. Contingent Liabilities not provided for: )

| Bank guarantees aggregating to Rs.20,70,00,000 (Previous Year — Rs.
21,70,00,000/-) to National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Rs.3,00,00,000/-
(Previous Year — 3,00,00,000/-) to Bombay Stock Exchange, Rs. 1,00,00,000/- to
MCX-SX Stock Exchange and Rs.4,00,00,000/- (Previous Year — 4,00,00,000) to MCX
Stock Exchange Limited as on 31% March 2017 for meeting margin requirements. ‘
The Company has pledged fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 14,35,00,000/-
(Previous Year — Rs. 14,75,00,000/-) with banks for o'btaining the above bank
guarantees. |
Counter guarantee given by the Parent Company (IFCI Limited) to a bank forissue
of bank guarantee to the subsidiary company IFCI Financial Services Limited -
Rs.30,00,00,000/- {previous year — Rs.30,00,00,000/-) and IFIN Commodities
Limited — Rs.5,00,00,000/-(previous year — Rs.5,00,00,000/-) '

Other Contingent liabilities in respect of claims against the company:

(Rupees in lakhs)

Forum before which the case is

. No. of cases Amount
pending
District Court, Patiala House, New
Delhi 1 1.43
Additional City Civil . & Sessions
1 127.45

Judge, Bangalore

Principal District Judge, Panaji




iil. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account and

not provided for (net of advances) is Rs. NIL (Previous Year —Nil)

IV. Earnings Per Share:
The Earning per Share [EPS] has been computed in accordance .with the
Accounting Standard 20 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India. The numerators and denominators used to calculate the EPS are:

{(Amounts in Rupees)

Ason As on
Particulars 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Net Loss for the year aval.lable for the equity share 235,35,343 (386,56,691)
holders (Before extra-ordinary ltem) '
Nominal value per equity share | .10 : 10
Weighted Average No. of outstanding equity
415,33,709
shares during the year — Basic & Diluted. 415,33,709
Bas!c & Diluted Earnings per Share (Before extra- 0.57 : (0.93)
ordinary ltem)
Net Profit for the year available for the equity
343 386,56,691
share holders (After extra-ordinary ltem) 235,35, ( )
Bas!c & Diluted Earnings per Share (After extra- 0.57 (0.93)
ordinary Item)

V. Current and Deferred Taxation:

(a) The Subsidiary Company IFIN Commodities Limited has provided Rs. NIL
(Previous Year — Rs. 6,76,179) as per provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) The Subsidiary Company IFIN Cr/g{itlemlted has prowded Rs. NIL (Previous Year

— Rs. 9,549) as per provisions c{>f ncgpgg/;l;a /




(c) The Subsidiary Company IFIN Securities Finance Limited has provided
Rs.65,25,000 (Previous Year — Rs.NIL) as per provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

(d) During the year the tax effect on timing difference has resulted in Deferred Tax
Liability and as a matter of prudence the company has recongnized the same in
the bopks. The Parent Company IFCI Financial Services Limited has recognized .
Rs. 27,66,999 and the Subsidiary Company IFIN Commodities Limited has
recognized Rs. Rs.1,82,730 towards the same.

VL. Managerial Remuneration:

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
To Whole Time Director '
(a) Salary and Allowances 28,50,367 24,80,956
To Managing Director
T(On deputation from IECI Limited)
(a) Salary and Allowances 30,09,440 24,44,008
(b) Contribution to PF and other funds 1,75,806 4,35,960
{c) Gratuity - -
(d) Others 1,12,858 -
Total 61,438,471 53,60,924

VIl Related Party Disclosure as per AS 18:

a) Holding Company
b) Subsidiary Companies

c) Fellow Subsidiaries

IFCI Limited
a) IFIN Commodities Limited

b) IFIN Credit Limited

c) IFIN Securities Finance Limited (Formerly

known as Narayan Sriram Investments Private

Limited)

a) IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited

b) IFCI Factors Limited

¢) IFClnfrastructure Development limit
)/gg(lmi structure D velop

|
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d) Stock Holding Corporation of india Limited

e) MPCON Limited

d)Transaction with Related Parties:

(Amount in Rupees)

sl . Holding /Subsidiary/ Fellow Key Managerial
Particulars . .
No. ~ Subsidiary Companies Personnel
2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 | 2015-16
1 Rent Paid to IFCI Ltd. 1,33,73,222 1,39,05,703 - -
Rent received from IFIN
2 Commodities Ltd. 26,27,949 27,82,956 -
3 | Brokerage Received 44.58 930 23.45 055 ) )
from IFCI Ltd SN T
Portfolio Management '
4 : : - - - -
Services fees received
Depository Services
5 | Feesreceived from IFCI 9,70,984 9,48,817 - -
Limited
Reimbursement of
6 Expenses to IFCI 1,31,975 1,55,584 - -
Limited.
Reimbursement of Exp
7 | received from IFIN - - - -
Commodities Limited
g | Managerial 61,48,471|  68,34,143| . ]
Remuneration
Consultancy Fee
9 | received from IFIN - - - -
Commodities Limited
Loan Availed from IFIN
10 | Securities Finance - - - -
_Limited r
Loan Repaid to IFIN '
11 | Securities Finance - - - -
Limited




Corporate  Guarantee

12 | Issued to IFIN 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
Commodities ltd

13 Interest Paid to IFIN ) )

, Securities Finance Ltd
Equity contribution

14 | made in IFIN Securities 30,01,00,000 | 30,01,00,000
Finance Limited :
Equity contribution

15 | made in IFIN 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
' Commodity Limited
Brokerage received

16 from IFCI Factors Ltd 7,170 1,06,509
Reimbursement of
.| Expenses  from IFIN

17 i . 1,25,00,000 1,00,00,000
Securities Finance
Limited
Amount Due to IFIN

18 | Securities Finance - -
Limited
Reimbursement of

19 | Expenses from IFIN 14,40,000 14,40,000
Credit Limited '

. Amount Due from IFIN

20 Credit Limited 9,95,950 11,63,600

21

Insurance of IFIN
Commodities Ltd Paid
by IFCI Financial
Services Ltd.

22

Amount Payable by IFIN
Commodities to IFCl
Financial Services Ltd

23

Loan availed from IFCI
Venture Capital Ltd by
IFIN Securities Finance
Ltd

24

Loan repaid to IFCI
Venture Capital Ltd by
IFIN Securities Finance
Ltd
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Interest paid to IFCI
Venture Capital Ltd-by
IFIN Securities Finance
Ltd

Loan availed from IFCl
26 |Factors Ltd by IFIN - - - -
Securities Finance Ltd ' ‘

Loan repaid to IFCI :
27 | Venture Capital Ltd by - - - -
IFIN Securities Ltd

Interest paid to IFCl
Venture Capital Ltd by
IFIN Securities Finance
Ltd

Vill. Employee Benefits
Provisions for employee benefits under revised AS 15:
(a) Defined Contribution plan: Provident and other statutory funds. The amount

recognized as an expense during the year is Rs.74,63,317- (Previous Year — Rs.

61,57,203/-) towards Provident fund.
(b) Defined Benefit plan-Liability on account of encashment of leave to

employees is paid within one year from the end of the financial year.

(c) The Company has constituted The Employees Group Gratuity Fund under the

Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme administered by the Life Insurance

Corporation of India. The scheme provides for Lump sum payment to vested
employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each year

of completed service or part thereof in-excess of 6 months. Vesting occurs on
ERLE O -

. L)
completion of 5 years of service./2
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IX. Employee Benefits

The following table sets out the Gratuity plan as required under AS-15 (revised).

ICOM - Year 2016-17

Particulars IFIN - Year 2016-17
| Policy No 605000538 605000514

‘Date of Valuation 31/03/2017 31/03/2017
Membership Date

Number of Members 159 27

Average age 38.05 34.11
Average Monthly Salary 18366.83 11366.03
Average past Service ' 5.48 5.11
.Valuation Method Projected unit credit Projected unit credit

' method method

Results of Valuation :

Present value of Past Service Benefit 69,15,862 5,28,442
Service cost 10,58,410 99,273

Fund with LIC 80,35,572 6,94,081
Accrued Gratuity 1,03,91,696 9,01,030
Actuarial Assumptions .

Mortality Rate LIC (2006-08) ultimate | LIC (2006-08) ultimate
Discount rate 8% p.a. 8% p.a.
Salary escalation rate 5% 5%
Withdrawal rate 1% to 3% depending on | 1% to 3% depending on

age age
Total Amount Payable NIL NIL

Balances of Sundry Debtors, Advances recoverable are subject to confirmation

from the respective parties. In the opinion of the management the same are




XI.

XIL

Company had initiated the process of identifying the vendors under Micro,

Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The Company isyetto =

receive intimation from the vendors stating their status under Micro, Small &

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. In view of this, the company has

"not made any provision and disclosure required by this Act.

Figures haye been rounded off to the nearest Rupee. Figures in bracket

represent previous year’s figures.
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ROUTE MAP FOR THE VENUE OF 22" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
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